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To the Honorable Mayor aod
I{embers of the City Council
Washington, Georgia

.Morris & Waters.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT

Report on the Financial Statements

Opinions

We have audited the accompanfng Frnancial staternents of dre govemmental activities, the business-type activities, each majot
fund and the zggtegzte remaining fund infotmaticn ofthe Ciw o[Wzshington, (ieo1gia, (t]re Ciry) as ofand for the year ended

December 37, 2022, and the related notes to the f.,rrancial statemeots, ,r'hich colJectively comprise tl-le City's basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents.

In out opinion, the financial statements rei'erred to above present fair!, in all matedal respecs, the respective financial
position of the gove.mmental activities, the busioess-tvoe activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major hxrd
and the aggtegate temaining fund information of the City as of December 31, 2022, and the tespective changes in turatrcial

position and, whete applicable, cash flows thereof and the tespective budgetaq' compadsons fot the General Fund for the i,ear
then ended in accotdance with accounung pdnciples generally accepted in the Uoited States of Amedca.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit.in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAS) and

the standatds applicable to financid audits cootained in Govemment Auditing Standards, issued by the Compttollet General
of the United States. Out tesponsibilities undet those standards are furthet desctibed in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements sectiot of ow tepot. \X'e are requfued to be indepe ndent of the Gty and to meet our other

ethical responsibilities, in accotdance with thc relevant ethical fequi.temeiits relating to our audit. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient a;rd appropiate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

lVlanagement is responsible for the ptepatation and fair presentation ofdre financial statements in accordance with accounting

pdnciples generally accepted in the United States of Amedca, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of intemal

conftol felevant to the prepatation and fair presentation of financial statements that afe free ftom material misstatement,

whether: due to fraud or eror.

In preparilg the financial statements, maflagement rs requked to evaluate u/hether drere are conditions or wents, considered

in the aggregatc, that raise substantial doubt abouL the City's ability to continue as a lloing concem fot twelve months bq,ond

the financial statement date, including arry currendy known information that may raise substantial doubt shordy theteafter.

Morris & Waters
Certified Public Accountants
325 Tellico Rd.
Canton. GA 301 1 5
Ph (770F88$3516 I
www.mori3-wslsr6.com



Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Out objectives are to obtain reasonable assumnce about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material

misstatement, whet}ter due to fraud or errct, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinions, Reasonable assurance

is a high lwel of assurance but is not absolutc assurance and therefore is not a gua.fantee fJ-rat an audit conducted in accordance

rvith GAAS and Gowernment Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not

detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from etror, as fraud may involve
collusion, fotgery, intentional omissions, misreptesentations, ot the override of intcmal contol. Misstatements are considered

material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a

teasonable user based on the finalcial statenents.

In performing an audit in accordance l*'ith GAAS rnd Govetnmental Auiliting Standards, we:

. l.ixercise professional judgnent and maiutain professional skepticism thoughorrt the audit.

' Identi{, and assess the dsks of matetial nisstatement of the Frrancial statements, whether due to ftaud ot error, and design

and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such ptocedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence

regatding the amounts and disclosutes in the ftnancial statements.

. Obtain an understanding of intemal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that ate appropriate in
the citcumstances, but not for the puq>ose of expressing an opinion on tle effectiveness of the City's intemal control.
Accordingly, no such opidolr is exptessed.

' Evaluate the aPpropdateness of accounting poiicies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimatcs made by
mana€iement, as u/ell as eyaluate the overall ptesentation of the Enancial statements.

. Conclude whether, in our judgment, tlerc are conditions or events, coosidered in the aggtegate, that raise substantial doubt
about the City's ability to continue as a going concer:r for a reasonzble petiorl of time.

Wc are required to cornmunicate with those charged w-ith governance regarding, among otier mattets, the planned scope and

titring of the audit, signihcant audit hndings, and certain intemal control-related matters that we identified during the audit.

Req uited Supplementary Infotm ation

Accounting principles genetally accepted in d:e Linited States ofAmedce tc<1uire that the management's discussion and analysis

on pages 4 through 13 and the required supplernefltary information on page 48 to be ptesented to supplernent the basic frnancial

statements. Such information is the rcsponsibiJie of management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements. is

requLed by the Govemmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial repottiog for
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. \tr7e have applied certain

limited procedues to the requited supplerrrentaq' information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the

United States of America, which consisted of ir.r<luiries of management about '.he methods of prepadng the information and

comparing the information for consistenc\- with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic Enancial stztements, and

other knowledge we obtained dudng our aucllt oi the basic financial statemcnts. We do not exp(ess an opinion or provide anv

assurance on the infomation because the limlted ptocedutes do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion
or provide any assurance.
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Supplem en taty fnformation

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forrning opinions on the {inancial statemerits that collectively comprise the City of
Washingtoo, Georgia's basic financial statefirents. 'l'he combining frnancial statements and schedules and the schedule ofprojects

hnanced with special purpose local option sales tax arc presented for purposes of additional aflalysis and are not a required part

of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of managemeflt and \vas derived from and telates direcdv

to the undedying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements, The information has been

subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic hnancial statcments afld certain additional ptocedutes,

including compadng afld reconciling such information &ectly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare

the basic firlancial statements or to the basic financial statements themseh,es, and other additional ptocedutes in accotdance

with auditing standards generally acceptcd in the Linited States of Arnerica. In our opinion, the combining st2.tements and

schedules and the schedule ofptojects f,nanced with special pur2ose local option sales tax are faidy stated in all material respects

in relatioa to the basic financial statemeflts as a v,hole..

Other Repotting Required by Govemment Auditit g Stat dards

In accordance urith Couemruefi Aaditittg S tandards, we have also issued out tepoft dated Novernbe r 29,2023, on ov consideration
of the City of Washington's intemal control ovet financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance vrith certain provision oi
laws, tegulations, conttacts, and grant agreements and other matters. The puqpose of that report is to describe thi scope of our
testing of intemal control ovet Fnancial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinir-rr.

on internal contol ovet financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Cotemme Atditing Sta ardr n consid.edng the Citv's intemal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Morris & Watets

7ntu, d^rl *fu
Canton, Geotgia
Novembet 29, 2023
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

City of Washington management is proud to present this narrative discussion and analysis of the City of
Washington's financial performance, making available an overview of the activities for the year ended December
31, 2022. This report is drafted annually to provide readers of financial statements with information that will help
them make timely and meaningful financial decisions or draw conclusions about the City of Washington. As
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 34, this discussion and
analysis affords comparisons with the previous fiscal year.

Financial Highlights. The City of Washington's assets exceeded its liabilities at December 31,2021 by $24,926,434 (net
position). Of this amount, $5,928,349 is reported as unrestric{ed net position. This is an increase of
$1,751,482 from the previous year for unrestricted. Total net position increased by $3,203,112 from the
previous year due mostly to increases in unrestricted net position.

As of December 31,2022, the City of Washington's governmental funds reported combined ending fund
balances of $1,131,400. Approximately $697,039 is reported as restricted. Approximately $65,142 is
reported as assigned. lnformation about the City of Washington's Policy on Fund Balance can be found
in Note 3-G in the Notes to the Financial Statements.

Overyiew of the Financial Stat€ments
This discussion and analysis nanative is intended to serve as an introduction to the City of Washington's basic
financial statements. The City of Washington's basic financial statements are composed of three elements: 1)
government-wide financial statements; 2) fund financial statements; and 3) notes to the financial statements.
This report also contains required supplementary information in addition to our basic financial statements.

Governmont-wide Financial Statements (Reporting the City as a whole). The focus of the government-wide
financial statements is on the overall financial position and activities of the City of Washington and is designed
to provide a broad overview of the City's financial activities in a manner similar to a private business enterprise.

The City's government-wide financial statements include the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of
Activities. These two statements report information about the City of Washington using the accrual basis of
accounting, which is similar to the accounting used by non-public businesses. All of the cunent yeafs
revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless of when cash is received or paid.

The purpose of the Sfaferrent of Net Position is to report all of the assets held and liabilities owed by the
City. The City reports all of its assets when it acquires ownership over the assets and reports all of its liabilities
when they are incurred. The difference between the total assets and total liabilities is labeled net position.
While the purpose of City Government is not to accumulate net position, as this amount increases it can
indicate the strength of the City's financial position as a whole. \A/hen this amount decreases it can indicate a
weakening of the City's financial position.

I
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The Staternent of Activiti* presents the revenues and expenses of the City. Under the accrual basis of
accounting, revenues are recognized when eamed and expenses when incuned in this statement. Thus,
revenues are reported even when they may not be collected for several weeks after the end of the accounting
period and expenses are recorded even though they may not have used cash during the cunent period. The
difference is described as change in net position. The Statement of Activities primary focus is on the nef cosl of
various activities provided by the City and identifies the extent to which each function of the City draws from
general revenues or is self-financing through user fees, special revenues, grants, or other sources.

ln the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, we divide the City of Washington into
three types of activities:

. Governmental activities - Most of the City's basic services are reported under this category
which includes: judicial, public safety, public works, and general administration. Taxes such as
real property, sales, insurance premium and intangible finance most of these services.

Business-type or Enterprise activities - The City charges fees to customers to assist in
recovering the cost for providing certain services. The City's water and sewer system, electric
system, solid waste services, and internet telecommunications system are reported in this
category.

.,]

'1 Pr*enfcd Component Unit - A component unit is a legally separate organization
for which the elected officials of the City can be financially accountable. The Downtown
Development Authority of Washington, Georgia, although legally separate, functions for all
practical purposes as a department of the City of Washington and has been included as an
integral part of the government.

Fund Financial Statements (Reporting the City's Major Funds).
The focus of fund financial statements is direc{ed at specific activities of the City and its most significant funds,
not the City as a whole. A fund is an entity with a self-balancing set of accounts that the City uses to track
specific resources and expenditures, either for management purposes or because of legal mandates. The City's
funds are divided into two broad categories: governmental and proprietary. They use different prescribed
accounting methodologies.

Governmental Funds - These funds account for essentially the same functions reported as
govemmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, govemmental fund
financial statements focus on the short{erm view of the City's general government operations and the
basic services it provides. Governmental funds are reported using an accounting method called
modified accrual, which measures cash and all other financial assets that can readily be converted to
cash.

:l

Because the focus of the governmental fund financial statements is narrower than that of the
government-wide financial statements and because of the different accounting methods used to prepare
them, there are often significant differences between the totals presented in these financial statements.
It is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information
presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By so doing, readers
may better understand the long{erm impact of the government's near-term financing decisions. An
analysis of the balance sheet and the statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund
balances that reconciles the two statements are provided following each statement.

The City of Washington maintains thirteen individual govemmental funds. lnformation is presented
separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the General Fund and the American Rescue Plan Act
Fund, which are considered major governmental funds. Data from the other governmental funds are
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combined into a single, aggregated presentation. lndividual fund data for each of these non-major
governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements.

The City of Washington adopts an annual appropriated budget for its General Fund. A budgetary
comparison statement has been included for the General Fund.

Prcprietary Funds - \Mren the City charges customers for the services it provides, whether to outside
customers or internally to departments of the City, these services are generally reported in proprietary
funds. The City maintains one type of proprietary funds: Enterprise Funds. These proprietary funds are
prepared using the same accrual basis of accounting as the govemment-wide financial statements.

Enterprise fund statements report the same functions presented in the business-type activities columns
of the government-wide financial statements. The City of Washington uses enterprise funds to account
for its Water and Sewer, Electric, Solid Waste, and lnternet Telecommunications functions.

Notes to the financaal statements.
The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the
government-wide and fund financial statements.

Required Supplementary lnformation
ln addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report presents certain required
supplementary information concerning the City's defined benefit pension plan.

Other Supplementary lnformation.
Other supplementary information includes combining financial statements for non-major governmental and
proprietary funds. These funds are added together by fund type and presented in single columns in the basic
financial statements but are not reported individually, as with major funds, on the government-wide financial
statements.

This report includes two schedules which reconcile the amounts reported on the governmental fund financial
statements (modified accrual basis of accounting) with the governmental activities reported on the government-
wide financial statements (accrual basis of accounting). The following summarizes the impact of transitioning
from modified accrual to accrual accounting:

Capital assets used in governmental activities on the government-wide statements are not
reported on fund financial statements.
Certain tax revenues that are earned, but not available, are reported as revenue on the
government-wide statements but as defened inflows of resources on the fund statements.
Unless due and payable, long-term liabilities, such as lease obligations, compensated absences,
bonds and notes payable, and others only appear as liabilities in the government-wide
statements.
Capital outlay spending results in capital assets on the govemment-wide statements but is
reported as expenditures on the governmental fund financial statements.
Certain other outflows represent either increases or decreases in liabilities on the governmenl
wide statements but are reported as expenditures on the governmental fund financial statements.

3
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Overview of the Gity's Financial Position and Operations

The City's overall financial position and operations for this fiscal year is summarized as follows based on the
information included in the government-wide financial statements:

City of Washintton
Net Position

December 3L 2OZl andm2l

Govemmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total

Current Assets

Capital Assets

Other Noncurrent Assets

TotalAssets to,644,t24 9,718,v6 26,246,L30 23,ffi,ss7 35,890,2s4

,iart)

2,8/.3,365

7,W,7s9

mm

t,871,379

7,W,767
6,4m

qim

9,8L9,957

16,426,173

zIJ2t

7,329,871

1t8sL883
426,W3

TatD

t2,66,3,322

24,226,932

tlitn

9,207,250

23,692,650

433,203

33,327,LO3

Total Deferred Outflows
of Resources

Current Liabilities
Noncurrent Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Total Deferred lnflows
of Resources

Net Position:

Net lnvestments in
CapitalAssets

Restricted

U n rest ricte d

Total Net Position

L4,552 168,770 3r,373 363,873 45,925 532, 3

L,677,930

1,165,998

2,W,928

102s,933
t,125,97

2,751\4W

,"865,052

6,364,858

8,229,920

7,929,@7

6,436,983

8,366,630

3,542,%2

2531,855

fl,o74,98

2,95s,s80

7,562,s30

10,518,110

@8,445

2038,016
697,O39

(s69,7521.

951,978 286,452 666,336 9v,897 1,6L8,3L4

7,165,303 0783,858 77,76L,13r L4,939,W

7,019,Lt8

4?2,Ln
(657,4371

1o,249,W
1,013,066

6,498,101

9,W,2W
1,LL2"382

4,817,783

t7,287,9W

t,7LO,LOs

s,924,U9

24,926,434

16,o28,4L7

1,5345s9

4,1@,y6

2L,723,322

Net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a govemment's financial position. Assets for the City
of Washington exceeded liabilities by $25,8'15,406 at the close ol 2022. Approximately 69% of the City of
Washington's net position is reflected in its investment in capital assets (e.9., land, buildings, machinery and
equipment, infrastructure), less any related debt outstanding that was needed to construct or acquire them. This
has decreased 5olo from 74olo at Decembet 31 ,2021 . The City uses capital assets to provide services to citizens.
Consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the City's investment in capital
assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be
provided from other sourc€s, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.
Restricted net position comprises 7% of total net position. This amount represents resources that are subject to
external restrictions or enabling legislation on how they may be used. Unrestricted net position makes up the
remaining 24%.
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The following condensed financial information was derived from the government-wide Statement of Activities
and reflects how the City of Washington's net position changed during the year.

City of Washington
Chang6 in Net Position

For YearB Ended December 31,2022 and 2021

Go\Ernmetrtsl Activities Busitrcas-Type Activities

REVINUOS
Charges for Scwiccs
Operatirg Grsnt and Contributions
Crpital Granh aod Contributions
General Relrnues:

Taxes

Property Taxcs
Salcs Taxes

Itrsurrnce Premium T&x

Alcohol Bcise Tax
Franchise T.x
Occupationsl Taxes

Other Taxer
Unrestricted lnwstmcnt Esrnings
Misccllaneous
Contributions
Gein on Sale ofAssets

Total Rarcrues

D(Pf,NDITIJRFS

Generrl Gowrnme[t
Judiciel
Public S afety
Public Works
Health and Wclfrrc
Culturo strd Rccrestion
Housing atrd Dewlopment
Deh,t Selaice
Wrter and Sewrr
Uectric
Solid Wsste
Ioternet Telecommu nicstions

Totdl Expenditurcs

Indircct Costs

Transfers

Net Chsnge in FIlnd Bakncca

Fund Bal.nces - Beginning ofYesr

' zo2l 7 zo22 / 2o2l / 2022

$ 307,442 $
145,810

785,M3

860,484

5,l0J8r
342,961

119,237

8,927
61,437

29,t77

\424
,u7

417,967

110,076

949,289

gfi,796
502.43
303,5r6
110,083

E7,r45

58,541

t1,64
2,706

t7,E84

25,7E5

27,lOO

$ 14,760,606 $ 25/03O14
855,820

r7,558
9J87

2,707,234

17,689,9tE

s4r56r

552,216

207

3382,457 3,s86,975 15,653J71 2sps5,230

782267
50,653

t,065,737

1J08,569
246.3O4

218,470

44a,242

37,*7

941,789

76,730

t276,256
1,738,401

295,067

303,070

737,01E

32,019

2305,217
9,211,515

4[,4,16
33,(D4

4217,829 5,400,350 12,033,992 20938',743

600,{41 (st8"399)

(1,606421)

2921,67

14,939,464

s88,399 (600,{41)

278,725

43,794

67q,O64

\606.,At
38r,445

6783,858

Q78,n5)
2,740,213

12,199,251

$ 6,7&3,858 $ ?,165J03 S 14939,$4 $ 17,761,131

8
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Governmental Activities -
The following chart illustrates revenues of the governmental activities for the fiscal year December 31,
2022:

REVENUES BY SOURCE - GOVERNMENTAL ACTTVTTTES (rN

THOUSANDS)

Other Revenue I
lnvestment tncome i

Grants and Contributiont

Charges for Services

Other laxes I
OccupationaiTaxes

Franchise Tax

Alcohol Excise Tax

lnsurance Premium Tax

Sales Tax

PropertyTax

0 400 600 800 1000

The following chart illustrates the expenses of the governmental activities for the fiscal year December
31,2022:

EXPENSES - GOVERN M ENTAL ACTTVTTT ES ( rN THOUSANDS)

lnterest on Long Term Debt I

Housing and Development

Culture and Recreation

Health and Welfa.e

Public Works

Public Safety

Judicial

General 6overnment

1200200

0 200 400 600 800 1000 1200 1400 1600 1800 2000
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Business-type activities increased the City of Washington's net position by $2,821,667, or 19%. This
increase is due to a large increase in net position in the Electric Fund and in the Water.

Financial Analysis of the City's Funds
The City of Washington uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements.

Governmental Funds. The main focus of the City's governmental funds is to provide information on
near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of unrestricted resources. Such information is useful in
assessing the City's financing requirements. ln particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful
measure of a government's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

1) As the City completed this fiscal year, its governmental funds reported a combined ending
fund balance of $1 ,131 ,400. Of this amount, $337,043 is reported as unassigned.

The General Fund is the chief operating fund ofthe City. At the end ofthe current year, fund balance of
the General Fund was $368,51 1. As a measure of the General Fund's liquidity, it is useful to compare
both unassigned fund balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures. Unassigned fund
balance at December 31 , 2022, is $326,149, or 89% of total fund balance. Total fund balance represents
approximately 9% of total General Fund Expenditures. The City ended the year realizing an decrease in
the overall fund balance in the General Fund by $103,907 or approximately 22o/o. The City decreased
unassigned fund balance in the General Fund by $41,614.

Proprietary Funds. The City of Washington's proprietary funds provide the same type of information
found in the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail. Unrestricted net position of the
City's four proprietary funds totaled as follows:. Water and Sewer $ 130,809. Electric $ 6,475,723. Solid Waste $ (108,431)

The Water and Sewer Fund increased net position by $61 1,579. The increase is due to a increase in
sales and an increases in transfers in from other funds. The Electric Fund increased net position by
$2,609,608. The increase is due to an increase in sales, an increase in cash and cash equivalents, and
an increase in intergovernmental revenue. The Solid Waste Fund increased net position by $62,359.
The increase is due to a increase in revenue.

10



Capital Assets and Debt Admanistration

Capital Assets. The City of Washington has invested $24,226,929 in capital assets (net of accumulated
depreciation) compared to $23,692,650 in the previous year. This represents a increase of about 2.260/o.
Approximately 68% of this investment is related to business-type aclivities and includes infrastructure, land,
buildings, and equipment and vehicles. Capital assets held by the City at year-end are summarized as follows:

City ot Washington
Capital Asseb (net of accumulated depreciation)

For YeaE 2021 and 2020

Governmental Activitie Busine ss- Activitiess Totals

2022 zozt 2022 _2011 ,

5r,242,o3siS1"242035 1 S 207,190 S 2o7,rn
8L,7!8, f1,71p,

n,n3: 8f,5,924,

i ,on 202t

5 7,M9,225 ,5 r,449,225

8r"718:

Land

Historical Treasures

Construction in Progress

Buildings and lmprovements
Equipment and Vehicles
Software
lnfrastructure

: 5,351818

3,723,587

513131045 ,

3,723,587 ,

7rqffi,
3",30-7.040,

545,143.

736.585

2,894,329

774

88s,924

; Om,$a
:."; .-7P3O,6-27-

s75915

5,059,731

6,6t7,916

33s

Total

.,]

4,265,360

L4,74L,853

1984,590

14461,0&!

26,101,066 i 21585,504

37?37tW 29,969,a52

Jt1I11I19r, l41sp99- -I

i ?0,166,426 Zg,s7t,W
45,979,759 ' 4,4{,935

#llIl!l. . I : I29r7,i8l$l,Accumulated Depreciation _pe4!0e4) (51620,,1161r

Net Capital Assets 7,W,759 . 7,84,767 : t6,426,L7O 15851,883 i; 24,226,9D; 23,692,650

Major capital asset expenditures during the current fiscal year for governmental activities included the
following:

Paving and Street Projects

Major capital asset expenditures during the current year for business-type activities included the following:

. Water Line lmprovements - Water / Sewer department. Water lnfrastruc{ure. New Water Meters. New Electric Vehicle. New Truck and Dump Body - Solid Waste department

DebUcapital Leases. On December 31,2022, the City of Washington had a total debt balance outstanding for
governmental activities in the amount ol $762,743, as compared to $821,649 the previous year. The City of
Washington's outstanding debt for governmental activities has decreased by $58,906 during the course of the
year. On December 31, 2022, the City of Washington had a total debt balance outstanding for business-type
activities in the amount of $6,176,209, as compared to $6,842,584 the previous year. The City of Washington's
outstanding debt for business-type aclivities has decreased by $666,375 during the course of the year.
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Economic Gondition and Outlook
The City of Washington is a rural bedroom community that continues to position itself for growth. The City is
investing in infrastructure and quality of life amenities that attract employees, retirees, telecommuters, small
business, and large industry. There are strong indicators that the strategy is working.

One of the newest manufacturing plants (Rekord Structures) announced an expansion that will add 20-30 new
jobs. Several other manufacturing companies grew their businesses despite challenges from the COVID era.
Perhaps the most notable economic threat in 2022 was the announcement that closure was imminent for WAHA,
the city's largest electric utility customer and the third largest cryptocurrency mining company in Georgia. City
leaders successfully negotiated a cost-plus power supply agreement with CleanSpark, a publicly traded
cryptocurrency mining company that ultimately purchased WAHA's debts. CleanSpark launched a major capital
improvement projec{ that is forecast to increase the city's electric utility sales by over 200%.

Located in the heart of Georgia's timber basket, Washington's local economy continues to see increased demand
for lumber and its secondary markets such as wood procurement, timber harvest equipment sales and service
of logging equipment.

A local entrepreneur launched a manufacturing plant (\Mlkes Lumber) that employs 15 people and provides
trusses to the commercial and residential construction industry. Shortly after launching, the company also
announced plans to build a sawmill on adjacent property and to hire an additional 25 employees. A third-
generation local sawmill (Burt Lumber) completed a major upgrade project in 2021 and announced yet another
capital improvement project for 2022. The city remains a finalist in site selection for a major agribusiness that, if
successfully landed, will create 1,083 new jobs and will be a significant consumer of water, sewer, and electric
services. Washington has much to offer prospects including Opportunity Zone incentives, fiber optic high-speed
internet, low cost of living, abundant natural resources, proximity to a larger labor pool within commute distance,
and a newly completed 4-lane expressway to l-20. Forthese reasons, the City continues to actively pursue other
companies to invest in our community, to bring more diversity to our market and thus more stability to our
economic future.

The City of Washington recognizes that growth also requires addressing the shortage of workforce housing and
also a shortage of affordable housing. To address worKorce housing, City leaders parlayed a 27-acrc land
donation into what is now called Washington Commons, the first privately funded new housing development in
over 50 years. The impact will provide 110 new homes and townhomes in the $150,000 to $250,000 range. To
address affordable housing, the City constructed four new homes as part of its Community HOME lnvestment
Program (CHIP).

The City of Washington is actively engaged with the Payroll Development Authority in partnership with the
County. The PDA is working with various businesses to fill our industrial park. The City also works with the Urban
Redevelopment Authority and the Downtown Development Authority. Both subunits of the City are actively
engaged in new business development and retaining of our cunent businesses.

The City continues to invest in its downtown district to attrac{ tourists and new business. For example, the Main
Street program helped save a blighted historic building by recruiting an artisan blacksmith who purchased it in
2022 and made it into a tourist attraction. The City and DDA also collaborated to develop a dog park in the
downtown district. The Main Street Department continues offering incentives for businesses locating in
downtown Washington. The City also continues to offer existing businesses incentives in the form of fagade
grants, and most recently a reduction in electric rates for small commercial customers.

The City employs a full-time director to manage the Main Street program and serve as director of its Downtown
Development Authority. This person works with businesses to plan and promote events that attract commerce
to the downtown area. The City regularly hosts downtown events such as the spectacular lndependence Day
festival and fireworks show organized by downtown merchants and the Chamber of Commerce. Main Street also
supports concerts and various children's activities downtown. Main Street actively recruits small businesses to
occupy vacant commercial spaces in the area.
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Over the past couple of years, the City of Washington improved its net position while investing in Capital assets.
Since the Covid-19 outbreak, the City has seen a mixture of small business closures offset somewhat by new
small business startups plus an upsurge in industrial business growth. The local housing market shows strong
demand with over 96% occupancy in our local market. The City is ideally located for those looking to trade urban
life for a quaint small-town lifestyle that offers a slower pace of life, lower crime rate, and lower cost of living. The
City has kept its property taxes low for several years.

The City of Washington is one of 49 cities that collectively own Municipal Energy Authority of Georgia (MEAG).
By default, the city is a shareholder in MEAG's 23.7Vo slake in Vogtle nuclear energy plant. Vogtle units 3 & 4
are under construction and slated to come online in 2023 and early 2024. This will provide our customers with
clean and reliable energy. The City continues to absorb the rising costs of electric prices due to State and Federal
regulations being mandated on sources of power, specifically coal units. Growth in industrial electric consumption
has enabled the City to consume all its MEAG power under contrac{, and to now become a consumer of excess
power from other MEAG cities to meet our growing demands.

The City unveiled steps to lower electric utility rates at a time when many power companies are raising rates.
For example, the City issued $350,000 total in two rebates to electric utility customers in FY2O22. The rebates
were then to be followed in FY2023 by a permanent 7.2o/o elecld,c rate rollback. The City continues to look for
ways to decrease costs through efficient operations and to increase the City's tax base with improvements to
residential communities and actively pursuing businesses to locate here in Washington. The City continues its
utilization of CHIP grant funds from DCA to build new homes on City owned property to help low to moderate
income families.

All of these items were considered in the 2022 budget process:
. The need for efficient operations and innovative ways to cut costs.
. Combining functions of employees to save money and eliminate duplication of duties
. Enforcing code to deal with dilapidated properties and thereby increase property values. The City also

adopted a blight tax.
. Making decisions with citizens' quality of life and affordability at the forefront of our decision-making

process
. Retaining a low ISO rating for fire and loss of life & property by making improvements to the Washington

Fire Department
. Continuing infrastructure improvements. For example, the city used its ARP funds to make critical

upgrades at its Water Treatment Plant and Wastewater Treatment Plant.
. Rising cost of healthcare and other insurance benefits
r Recruiting and retaining a qualified worKorce by increasing the base salaries across the board and

' offering more training to employees

Contacting the City
This financial report is designed to provide City citizens, taxpayers, customers, and creditors with a general
overview of the City of Washington's finances and to demonstrate the City's high level of accountability for the
revenue it receives and the services it provides. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this
report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to:

City of Washington
AUn: City Administrator
P.O. Box I
Washington, Georgia 30673

Website
htto://www.citvofwashinotonoa.qov
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CITY OF WASHINGTON, GEORGIA
STATEMENT OF NET FOSITION

DECEMBf,R3I,2022

Primrry Govarnmetrt

Comporetrt
Utrit

Govcrrmentrl
Activities

Bwitr.ss-Type
Activitics Totd

ASSETS

Current Assets:

Cash rtrd Crsh Equival€nts
Investments
Restricted Ass.ts

Crsh rnd Ce3h Equivalents
Itrv$tmenis

Receivrbl.s (nat)

ldergovarnmGntrl

Trxas

Prep.id Expcnscs

Totel Currant A5set5:

$ 2,140,762 5
13,236

3,269,013 S

1,697,t38
5,409,775 $
1,710374

4,821
2,458

31,6t6 30I,885
I,0r3,066

333,501

I,013,066

3E,t24

103,070

444351
12,196

2tr43J6s

3,545J45

103,070

444361
43330

3,so7221

31,63{

9,819Js7 12,663322 lrr8s

Notrcurrctrt Assetr:

Crpitrl A$ct3, Nct of Accu lrlad DcprccirtioE

Crpit.l A$cts Not B.ing Dcprcci.t d
Capit l Ar6ats, N.t ofD.precirtion

Totel Noncu ent As€ts:

rr323Js3
6,477,006

2A16$67
21r10,065

t,093,114

r5333,0s9

7,E00r59 173 24226,932

Totel Asscts

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Dcferrcd O[mows of Rerotrrces - Pcnsion

DEFERR-f,D INFLOWS OF RESOT'RCES

Defened lrllou! ofResources - PaBion

t0,644,124 26.146.130 36.t90.2S4 I1.285

14.552 3r373 {5.925

LIABILITIES
Accoutrh PryobL
Accrued Lirbilities
Compensxted Absences

Accr[ed Intarast Payrblc

Duc to Others

Uneortred Ravcnuc

Liabilitica psyrblc from rcstricted rssets

Cff tom.r D.posils P.yebh
Noncurrctrt Lirbilitics:

Nct Pcmion Li.bility
Long Term Li.biliti$ Due within one yc.r
Long Term Li.bilities Duc in more thsr one ye.r

Tot l Li.bilities

404255

6132E
7Ol,4t5

lEt,6s9

672,1t2
5-503,427

s92914

734,110

6204,842

140,909

61:v91

83,567

5,175

rJso
1,37EJ32

l,{62,150

47,tU
50J25

3,00E

r,603,059

!l5,l8t
t34392

8,183

l,{50
I,378,832

301,885 301,E85

2,t44,92t t229.920 ll.074J4t

6{8J45 246.452 934.897

NET POSITION

Net InvcstmGnt itr Crpitrl Asscts

R8trictad for:
MEAG Gemrrtior Tru*
Public Work
Crlturc snd R.cr.rtiotr
Housitrg strd D.vclopmetrt

CrDitrl Projccts

Unr.strict d

Tot l N.t Pdition

221214

sorls
27969

397341
(559.752)

r,0r3,066

221214

50,6r5

21,t69
391341

5,92t349

172a7940

6,49t,101 I |,2t5
$ J165103 $_JJ(LrI S_2r,y&,$! S_rlJls

7,03t,0r6 t0,249,964

r,013,066

The notcs to th. linrficial strtcments ,re rn integ.sl prrt ofthis strtemcnt
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CITY OF WASIIINGTON, CEORGTA
S'IAI'EMINT OF ACTIVITIES

rOR THtr YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2022

N.t (Exp.nsc) Rcvcnu. rDd
Chrns$ in Net Positiotr

Ch.rges for
Oper.tiq
Clrnts rnd

Crpit l
Grtnb and Bu3ioe&!-Typr Corlporcll

llnit

Primrry Govcmm.nt

FUNCTIONS]PROGRAMS

Primrry Govemmcd:

Govemnentrl Activities:

Cenerrl Goveram€nt

Judicirl
Public Srf.ty
Public Work
Hc.llh rd Welfrrr
Crlture and Recftrlio,
Housing rnd Delelopm.n.
Itrterest or ,-o.Aner Debt

I orll Gov.mDcnlrl A.tiviti.s

Bu.in€s-Type Activiti€s:

wltar ard Scx,er

Olecaric

Shlid Waste

lntemel Telerommuricalions

Totll BBin€s-Type Acrivitie.

Totrl Prim.ry Gov€.nn.

2,7M,234

fi,649,98
54t,561

20,9a4,743

26,339,093

ComDoreni Unit
Downiowtr Developrn€nt Authority 1,573

Idir€.t
E p€n3e3 Co3E

100J63

4a\436_

5t&399

Totrl

$ 94t,789

16,nn
1,276,25
1,738,40t

lrs,061
303,070

131,Ot8

- 32,019

s,400,3s{t

$ 023,121)
(9,5E7)

o3r,&r8)
(222,6991

Q8,m2t
(36,401)

(36,6t1)

(sE&399)

$ 74138

t1713
lmJ3,
73,055

64318

55,Uta

417,967

s-
E,900

96,383

1,793

, t0,076

$ 375,695

149,007

424,S,}t

949,249

949,289

s (36E,s35) S -
(67,M3)

(1,089,78s)

(r,166,973)

o93,990)

o9s,4r8)
(220,786)

(32,01e)

(3J34,6r9)

$ (36E,s3s) S -
(6?,043)

o,089,7rs)
(r,r66,973)

093,990)

o9s,488)
(22O,185',)

(32,019)

(3334,6rq

2,624,966

22,212,685

5!t7,665

25,403,014

25,E20,9u t 10.076

- (r79,8r) O7923t)
- 4msJor 4,035,301

- l5,l{H l6,lu
3,698

3,t75,E72 3,fi5,472
(3,334,619) 3,8?5,E72 s4t,2s3

Gercrll Rev.ru..:

Property Trr€i
Srles Tsres

IBur.nce Pr.mium T,r
Alcobol Ercis€ T.x
Fmmhi.. Trx
O(tuprlionrt T.l!s
Other T're3

Uorcstricd hv..tmcd Ermirg3
Mi!..ll.neou.
Co ributior!
G.in on S.l. ofA!.rcb

Ch.trgd h Ne. PGition

5,605

9*,7
$2,43
303,5t6

110,083

E7,145

58J.r1

17,464

2,706

17,8E4

25,7t5

27,1n
1,6lJ6,421

3,116,OU

38r,445

4,{I}2

4,032

- 6796
- s{14623

- 303516

- tr0,0t3
- 87,145

- 5t 541

- 17,464

532,216 534922

- u,$4
- 25'?83

- 27,100
(r,606,421)

,0s{,2fl 2,661,t59

2,nL67 3,203,r 12

Net Po.itior - B€ginning

Net Po6ition - f,rdinr

6.783.E58 14,939,64 21,723,122 7)53

$ 7J65;rn rJ:Jq.lll i_)r$6,Ly s l1J85

The mt€s to the ,inaftirl strl4ncDs are rI integr.l part of this strteDena.
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WASIIINGTON, GEORGIA
GOVERNMENTAI, FUNDS

BALANCE SHEET

DECEMBER3I, 2022

General

American

Rescuc Plan
Act Fund

Total

Governmentrl
Funds

Nonmajor

Governmentrl
Funds

ASSETS

Cash rnd Cash Equivalents

Iovestments

Restrictcd Assets

Crsh and CaEh Equivalents

Receivables (net)

Accounts

lntergovernmentsl

Taxes

Preprid ltems

Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts and Cortracts Payable

-Accrued Salsrie$ s|td Payroll Lirbilities
Due to Others

Uncarned Revenuc

Total Liabilities

I)eferred In ofRcsources

Unavailable Revenue - Property Taxcs

FUND BALANCE

Nonspertdable:

Prcpsid ltcms

Contrrctually Required to be Maintrined Intact

Restricted for:

Public Works

Cullure and Rccrcstion

Ilousing rnd Development

Capital Projecas

Assigncd for:

Public Works

Culture and Recreation

Housing snd Development

Unassigned

Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows ofResources rnd

Fund Balrnces

1.1.3t.400

$ 701,875 $ r3E9,47r $ 752,019 $ 2,843,365

$ 144,920 $

3Jr9

31,616

1J89,47r $

r -389-47r

606,37t $

69,917

2,140,762

73236

3r,6r 6

38,124

4l.31r

43O329

12,t96

701.875

6r,699

14,032

752-Otg

38,124

r03,070

444,361

12,196

2.843.365

r40,885

67,997

r,450
255 l37a,g7

24

210.587 74,y7 24

122,771

12,t96

7

2,290

21,869

!26,149

368,sll

38,067

20.241

6,834

337,04310,894

r0,894

r9,980

221,207

4EJ25

397341

38,067

20,241

6,E34

12,196

r9,980

221,214

50,615

27,869

397,341

Th€ notes to the lirrnci.l statements are.n integral psrt ofthis st temetrt.

l6

140,909

67,997

1,450

1J78,832

r.589.188

122.171

751,995



CITY OF WASHINGTON, GEORGIA
RECONCILIATION OF TIIf, GOVERNMENTAL FTJI\IDS BALANCE SHEET

TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

DECEMBER 3I, 2022

Totel Fund Belences for Governmentd Funds

Totrl Net Position for Governmental Aclivities in the Strtement ofNet Position is different beceuse:

Capitrl assets net ofacccumulated deprecirtion Nre not fin.nci.l resourcc!

and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.

$ t,131,400

Revenues in the statcment oflctivities that do not provide current linrncixl resou.ces arc
reported as deferred inllows ofresources ir the funds, These are:

Property taxes

7,800,759

122,171

14,552

{648,445)

(83,s67)

(s,l7s)
(4Mrss)
(762,743\ (1,255,740)

$ 7,165,303

Deferred outflows and inflows ofresources relrted to pensions are applicable to future
periods and, thcrefore, are not reported in thc funds. These rre:

Deferred outfl ows of resources

Deferred infl ows of reso[rces

Some liablities are not due and psyable in the currcnt period and, therefore, rre not
rcported in the funds. Thcse are:

Compcrsated absenccs

IDtcrest paysble

Net persion liability
Installment sale agreement payable

Total Net Position of Governmertal Activities

The notes to the fi[.ncial st{tements .re an integral part ofthis statcment.
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CITY OF WASHINGTON, GEORGIA
GOVERNMENIAI, FUNDS

STATEMENT OF RIVEI\IIJIS, EXPENDITURES AIID CIIANGES IN FUND BALANCES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

RTVEIruES
Taxes
Licenses and Permitr
Intergovernmental
Fines, Fees and Forfeitures
Charges for Services
Investment Income
Contributions
Other

Total Revenues

E)GE}IDTfl]RIS
Current:

Genersl GoYernment
Judicial
Public Ssfety
Public Works
Ilealth and Welfare
Culture and Recreation
Housirg ald Development

Detrt Service

Totsl Experditur€s

Excess (Defi ciency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

@
Transfers In
Traqsfers Out
Sale ofAssets

Total Other Firancing
Sources (Uses)

Net Change ir Fund Bdrnces

Fund Balances - Beginning of Year

Furd Bal&ces - End ofYear

American
Rescue Plan

Act trund

No[msjor
GoYernmental

Funds

Total
GoYentmetrtal

tr'unds

$ 2,r85,r15
36,9m

910 335
45,713

334,926

3,217
25,785

$ 2,036,168 $

36,900

110,076

45,713
334,926

294
25,745

G€nerEl

1

$ 148,947

2,4t2

8m,259

511

2,607,746

t7
2,4t2 949,717 3,559,875

866,839
68,201

928,354
1,561,921

197,290

256,285
257,764
91,296

137,452
142,52t

1,835
435,452

866,839
68,201

1,065,806

t,710,448
197,2N
258,120
693,2t6
91,296

4,233,956

(1,626,2r0)

2,859,510
(r,364,307)

27,tOO

1,522,303

(103,907)

472,418

l_-__ffq!i_L

7t7 4,951,2t6

2,412 232,451 (1,391,341)

15,989
(8,310)

695,632
(s92,(D3)

103,539

335,996

415,999

3,57r,131
(1,964,710)

lm

1,633,521

242,t80

889.220

7,619

10,(D1

803

l______4!24 $ 7s1p2e $ I,131,400

The notes to the financial ltatements are atr integral port ofthir rtatemenl
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CITY OF WASIilNGTON, GEORGIA
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OT REVEIIUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CIIANCES IN TUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTWITIES

trOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBf,R31,2022

Net Change in Fund BaLnce - Totrl Governtnent.l Frmds

(;overnmental funds report c{pitsl outlays .s erpenditures. However, in tfte Stlaement of Activities the co6t

of those assets is .llocated over tteir estimrted useful lives .nd is reported .3 depreci.tion erpeDse. This is
thc amount by which depreciation of $320,778 exceeded capital ouday of ($28Q770) in tlrc current Friod.

Repalment of deb, princip.l is ,n erpenditure in the govenm.ntal frmds, but the reprlment reduc.s long-term
liabilities in the statement of net positiotl In additiorl intere3aon long-term debt is not recognized in the
govemmental funds rmtil due, but fu recognired in the 3titement of.ctivitiB .s it.ccrues.

Net Chrnge in Interest Peyable

Debt Principrl P.lments

Government fttrrds report perEion contributiotrs as erpenditurea. Howerver, in dre statement of rctivities

the coat of pension benefrts earned net of employee contributions is reported rs pension erpcns{.

Pension Contribution
Cost of B.nefiB Earned net of Employee Contribution

Revenues in dre stltement of sctivities that do not provide current h|rncid resources rre not
reported as revenues in the funds

Unavaikble Revenues

Some cxlxnses rePorted in the strtement of rctivities do not require the use of c,urrent fuancirl
resources ,nd sre not reporled s3 expenfitures in gove mental frmds,

Compensated Abselces

Clhrnge in Net PGition of Gorcnnnent l Activitic.

The notes to the fiirlncial st&temenb rre an integrrl p{r't of this rtatement

181,0E6

(84,398)

s 242,1E0

(40,0(n)

59,217

96,688

25,621

GJ13)

E__!!!l4i

37t
5E,r06
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CITY OF WASHINGTON, GEORGIA
Gf,NERAL FUND

SCHEDULf, OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES & CHANGES IN FUND BALANCf,S
BUDGE'T & ACTUAL (CAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE Yf,AR ENDED Df,CEMBER 31, 2022

BudEet

Oriqiml S'inal Actuel

$

REl'ENI]ES
Taxes:

Property
Sales

Imurance Premiurn
Alcohol Excise

tr'rtrnchise

Occuprtionrl
Otirer

Licenses & Permits
Intergovernmentsl
l-ines & Forfeitures
Charges For Services

Invesarnent I[come
Contributions

Other
'Iotal Revenue.s

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Cenerel Govemment

Judici.l

Public Srfety

Public Wor}s

Herlth lnd Welfere

C\ ture rnd Recreation

Housing and Development

Debt seryice

Totel Erpnditures

Excess of Revenues Over Etpendiaures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (TJSES)

Transfers In
Transfers Out
Sale of Assets

Total Other Financing Sourc6 (Uses)

Net Chsnge ilt Fund B{lances

l'rmd B.l.ncq Begiming of Year (as re-st.ted)

Fund Balsnce, End of Year

Vrrirnce with
Final Budgct

E22,394

360,000

310,000

134,900

94,400

54,195

14,(m
33,200

64,5m
45,(m

334,263

427

5m
749,944

422,594
360,m0
310,m0
134,900

94,400

5{,195
14,(m
33,200

6,1,500

45,m0
331,263

427

500
7E9,948

956,196

502,623

303,516

110,083

t7,145
58,541

11,464

36,900

11q076
45,713

334,926

294
25,7E5

17,884

t34,202
r42,623

(6,484)

Q4,tr7)
(7,2ss)

4,346

3,464
3,7m

45,576

113

663
(133)

2srEs
(772,061)

$ $ $

3,051,921 3,051,927 2,601,146 (4s0,1t1)

949266

65,tt6

977,591

1,562,438

596243

361,116

437,5E9

9rr00
5,04\49

949,266

65,tt6

977,591

1,562,,13E

596,243

361,116

437,589

9L3m

t66,t39

61101

92aAs1

1,567,927

r97?90

236,243

251,164

9t,296

42,427

(2,31s)

49,231

(s,489)

398,953

1M,83r

fig,423
4

5,Mt,429 4,233,956

(1,983,s(D)

2,tso,2a
(166,900)

200

472,4t4

(r,et3,s(n)

2,150202
(166,900)

200

1,9tr},502

(1,626,210)

2,t59,510
(1,364"30?)

27,|N

351,292

70930r
(t,191,401)

26,9N

r,983,502 1,522"303

(103,907)

472,4t4

$ 368,SU

(103,907)

1r$

4

Z{'l

412,418 3



CITY OF WASHINGTON, GEORGIA
PROPRIETARY FT]NI)

STATEMENT OF I\ET POSITION
DECEMEER 31, 2022

Bqritress- Activities

Water and
Sewer Electric

3,269,013 $

1,697,l38

Nonmajor

Enterprise
Funds

85,171
r,450

86,621

Totsl

$ 3,269,013
1,697,84

301,885
1,013,066
3,5M,221

ASSETS
Current Ass€ts:

Cash rnd Cash Equivalentr
Irvestments
Restricted Assetr

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Irvestments

Accounts Receivable (Net of Allowance for Uncollectibles)
Prepaid Expenses

Totrl Curtent A$ets

Noncurrent Arsets:
Capital Assetr not Being Depreciated
Capital Assets Net Of Accumu-tated Depreciation

Total Noncurrent Assets

Total Aisets ----75.D2,87:L -lji.tu1A6;1, s8l.7qs ___J626JN

26,695 3,256

$ $

98,305

381,816
7,371

20:!,580
1,013,066
3,040,234

2:2,813

9,245,844

31

1,080 634
13,454,741

14,535,381

8,480
1,387,r38
1,395,618

4,000
491,174

9,819,957

I,(D3,114
15,333,059

16,426,113495,174

DEFERRED OUTTLOWS OF RX,SOI.IRCES

Deferred Outflows ofRerources - Penlion 31,373

IIAEUJIE
Current Liabilities:

Acconntr Payabl€
Accru€d Liabiliti€s
Compemated Absences
Accrued Interest Payable
Notes Paysble - Current
Liabilities Payable from Restricted As.ets

Customer Deposits

Total Current Liabilities

Notrcurrent Liabilities

Net Penrion Liability
Notes Payable - Noncurrent

Total Noncurr€nt Liabilities

Total Liabilities

81,354
24,595

3t,7tt
2,986

618,120

98,305

1,325,384
14,666

13,159

203,580

1,556,789

55,4r2
7,923
5,955

,'t
34,662

1,462,150
47,184

50,825
3,008

672,782

301,885

857 123,974

77,744

139

5,457,887

66,679

33,716

123,288

157,(x)4

188,659

5,503,427

5,692,086

77,t95

195

6,314,958 1,633,984 280,978 8,229,920

DEFERRED IMI,OWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Inflowr ofResourcet - PeDrior 126,327 93,446 286,452

NE.BSIIPN
Net Investmert in Cspital Assets
Restricted for MEAG G€rerstior Trwt
Unrestricted

Total Net Position

8,537,t22

130,8(D

$ 8,66193r

1,395,618
1,013,066

723

3t7,224 10,249,964
r,013,066
6,498,101

$ 17,761Ji1

(108,431)

$

The notes to the financial stateEetrts are an integral part of this statement
2',1

$ 8,884,407 793



CITY OF WASHINGTON, GEORGIA
PROPRIETARY FU}ID

STATEMENT OF RTVEITUES, E)(PDNSES AND CIIANGES IN Nf,T POSITION
DECEMBER 31, 2022

Activities

W8ter and
Sewer

$ 2,62A,966

Electric

$ 22,2t2,t65
520

17,591,850
{64,198
121,336

18.177.384

4.035.301

Normsjor
Enterprise

Funds

185,952

267,811
87,488

541.237

Total

OPERATING REVE}ruES
Charges for Sales and Services

Other

Total Operating Revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
Cost of Sales and Services
Perconal Services

Depreciation

Total Operating Expenies

Operating Income(Iars)

NONOPERATING R}\'ENIUES (IXPENSES)

Interest Revenues

Irterest on Notes Payable

Grin on Ssle of Investment in Joint Venture

Net Decreare in Fair V8lue of IDyertments

Total Nonoperstilg R€yenues (Erpenres)

Net Itrcome (Irss) Before Transfers

Transferr in
Transfers out

Totsl Transfers ir,/(out)

Chsrges in Net Position

Net Po$itioE - Eeginning

Net Positiotr - Ending

$ 561,363 $ 25,402,494

19,085,290

1,720,063
767

2t.499.120

20.106 3.9fii.894

s20

2,44,966 22,2t2,685 561,363 25,40:t,014

1,307,488

988,048
484,943

2.180.479

(151.513)

Q1,1t8)

(27,718)

(179,231)

1,662,325
(871,515)

790,810

3,216

(86.049)

(82,833)

3,952,468

(304)

635,M9

634,745

654,851

3,216

Q8,022)
635,049
(86,M9)

524,194

4,428,m8

I,t15,724
(2,4s8,s84)

(1,342,860)

344,423
(1,398,794)

(1,0s4,371)

3,t22,472
(4,728,893)

_J1J0!J2.I

611,579

8,056,352

$ 8,6612!1

2,6(D,608

6,274,799

!,,__4,8!4,192

(399,s20)

6MJ13

$ 2(B,793

2,82L667

14,939,464

$ 17,761,131

The notes to the financisl ststements ar€ an integral part of this ststement.

m



Cash Fl0ws from Operating Activities:
Crsh Received from C\Btomers
Cash Payments to Suppliers
Cash Payments to Employees

Net Cash provided by (Requtued for)
Operating Activities

Cash Flows ftom Capital snd Related Finsncing Actiyities:
Tr{rlsfers from Other Fund!
Purchase of Capital Assets

Principal Paid on Notes Payrble
Intexest paid on Notes Piyable

Net Cash Requir€d for Cspitf,l snd Relsted Finsncing Activities

Cash llows from Noncspit&l Finencing Activiti€s:

Tnnsfers from Odrcr Frmals

Transfers to Other Funds

Net Cash Provided(Used) by Noncapital Financing Activities

Cesh trlows from Investing Activities:
Interest Receiv€d

Purchase of InYestments

Sale of Investment in Joint Venture

Net Cash Provided.(Used) by INesting Activities

Net Increas€ in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Equivalents at Begirming of Yerr

Cash and Equivalents at End of Year

Reconciliation of opereting I-o6s to Net
Cssh Provided from Ollerating Activities:

Oper&ting I-o€s

Adjurtments to Reconcile Operating
(Irss) to Net Cash Provid€d by
Operating Activities:
Depreciation end Amortization
(Increase/Decrease in Accounb Receivsble
I)ecreNe in Inventory
(Increase/Dccrease in Prepaid Expenses
Decreasc in Deferred Outllo!rys - Pension

Increase in Accormts Payable

Decrease in flnearned Revenue

Increase h Accrued Li.bilities
Increas€ in Customer Deposits
Decresse in I)ue to Other Funds

Incrcase in Cornpensated Absences
Decre8e in Net Pension Liability
Decrease in Deferred Inllows - Pension

Net Cash Provided by

Oper.ting Activities

The not€s to the fina[cial statements are an infegral part of this statemcnt

23

CITY O['WASHINGTON, Gf ORGIA
PROPRIETARY FIJND

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER3l, 2022

W.ter lnd
Sewer

6 2,123,902

G,108,01?)
(975212)

592,093

(790,109)

(611,79s)

<2t,5121

(t38J83) (369.894)

6 ,03 4,237 ,623 155,,164 5,033,750

Busin€s- Activiti€s

Electric
Enteryrisc

Flmds

$ 21,535,254
(434,296)

(16,843,335)

(369,894)

598,580
(180,414)

Q62,1021

Total

$ 244s1,136
(1,742,127)

(1t,0t1,249)

$

(108,0s4)

(s4,5t0)
(304)

sqL093
(1,268,057)

(66637s)
(28,876)

062,938) 0.371,215)

1,010,232
(r71,s15)

r,tts,724
(2.45E,584)

344,423
(1398,794)

2,530,379
(4,?28,893)

(2,198,514),94,711 (1"342,860) (1,0s4,371)

3,216
(tsE,931)

r,061,845

3,216
(8s8,93r)

1,061,t45
(t55,715) 1,061,t45 206,130

1,007

97,294

98,305

1,669,154

1't03"A9

3,412,593

1,670,161

1,9oo,137

3,570,894

(151,sr3) 4,03s,301 20,106 3,m3,894

4t4,943
93,v29

200,625

4,630
2a2,916

r6,413
(1,007)

12,436
1,007

12r336
(617,431)

313,937
(68e7)
34s11

504,223

87,,188

37,217

(6s6)
15,073

28,n6

5,115

1,040
(1,744)

693,767
(546,28s)

514562
(2,v23)

332,500
544,702

(1,007)

27,853
5,tq)

(12397>
21203

(72,11s)
(379,8t4)

9,902
4,883

(12,391)
6,593

Q,9n')
(92346r

13,570

<6,319)
Qsr,297)

$ 640,673 $ 1U)62j $ 155,.1&l !___1,0{&q



CiO of Washington, Georgia
Notes lo the Basic Financial Stalements

December 31, 2022

Note 1 - Summaty of Significant Accounting Policies

Incorporated in 1780, under the laws of the State of Geotgia, the City of Washington is govemed by a swen member
Mayor/Council fotm of govemment. The Mayor is elected to a four-year term, and the Council members are elected to
staggered four-year terms. The Mayor serves as the Chief Executive Officet and the othet six Council members serve
on a part-time basis. The Mayor is assisted by the City Administrator to handle the daily operations of the City.

The financial statements of The City have been ptepated in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United Sates of America (GAAP) as applied to govemmental units. 'fhe Govemmental Accounting Standards
Boatd (GASB) is the accq>ted standatd-setting body for establishing govemmental accounting and Frnancial teporting
ptinciples. Ptoprietary funds apply Financial Accounting Standatds Board (FASB) pronorulcements and Accounting
Principles Board (APB) opinions issued on or before November 30, 1989, unless those ptonouncements conflict with
or conttadict GASB pronouncements or APB opinions issued after November 30, 1989. The most significant ofThe
Cin"s accounting policies are described below-.

1-A. Reporting Eatity

'fhe I-rnancial statements of the tepotting entity include those of City of Washington, Georgia (the primary govemment).
Component units are legally sepatate organizations for which The City is financially accountable for the entity or the
exclusion of such entity would cause The City's financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. Financial
accountability exists if The City appoints a voting maiority of the entity's goveming body and either The City can impose
its will on the entity or the potential exists for the entity to provide specific financial benefits ot impose specific financial
burdens on The City. Based on this definition, The Gty has one component unit, The Downtown Development
Authority, that is required to be reported in these Frnancial statements. The primary govemment of The City consists
of all funds, departments, boards and agencies that are not legally separate from The City. Each discretely presented
component unit is reported in a sepatate column irr the govemment-wide financial statements to emphasize that it is

legal\. separate ftom the govemment.

Downtown Development Authotity of Washington, Geotgia

The Downtown Development Authodty of Washington, Georgia was established as a legally sepatate entity, which
()perates pursuant to the Official Code of Georgia Annoated. The Authority consists of seven mernbets, who are

appointed by the Mayot and Council. The Downtovm Dwelopment Authority provides for the vitalization of the
dov'ntown area of the City of Washington. In many respects, the Authority functions similat to a City depattrnent
through tegular participation in departrnent dilector meetings, accounting, payroll, etc. The Aut}lority is included in the
reporting entity due to the riature and significance of its relationship with the City of Washington. The Downtown
Dcvelopment Authority of Washirigton, Georgia is repoted in a separate colurnn to emphasize that it is legally sepatate

from the Gty. Sepatate finadrcial statements of the component unit can be obtained from the Downtown Development
Authority, P.O. Box 9, lrashington, Geotgja 30673.

1-8. Basis of Ptesentation

The City's basic Frnancial statements consist of government-wide financial statemefits, including a Statement of Net
Position and a Statement of Activities and fund financial statements, which provide a mote detailed level of financia.l

information. These statements report Enancial infotmation for The City as a whole Individual funds are not displayed

but the statements distinguish govemmental activities, generally supported by taxes and grants and The Ciw's genetal

reveflues, from bushess-t1pe activities, genetally financed in whole or in patt with fees charged to extemal customers.
Fiduciary funds are not included in the govemment-wide financial statemelts.

The Statement of Net Position ptesents the financial position of the goverrnental and business-tgre activities ofThe
City at the fiscal year-end. The Statement of Activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program
revenues for each function ofThe City's govemmeotal activities and for each identifrable activity of the business-type
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CIE ol Washington, Georgia
Nores lo the Basic Financial St emenls

Decmfier 31, 2022

activities ofThe City. Direct expenses are those that ate specifically associated with a fi.rnction and therefore clear\
identifiable to that particular function. The City has elected flot to allocate indirect eq)enses among its programs,
fuoctions and segments in the Statement of Activities. 'Ihe Staternent of Activities reports the expenses of a given
function offset by program tevenues dkectly connected s/ith the functiona.l progtam. A fi.rnction is an assembly of
sirnilar activities and may include portions of a fund or summadze mofe than one fund to capture the expenses and
program revenues associated vzith a distinct functional activity. Ptogram revenues include: (1) charges for sewices
which repott fees and othet chatges to users ofThe City's serices; (2) opetating graots and contributions which Frnance

annual opetating activities including testticted investment income; and, (3) capital grants and contributions which fund
the acquisition, construction or rehabilitation of capital assets. These revenues are subiect to extemally imposed
restrictions to these ptogram uses. To identiS which firnctional ptogram a reveflue pertains to, the detetrnining factot
fot charyw for uruices is that function whi ch ,gtneratet the reretrue; zrad. for grant atd clfitibutinrs, the determining factor is

that function to which the revenue is rc$irted. Olhet rcvenue sources not propedy included vith ptogram revenues are
repotted as general revenues of The City. The comparison of &ect expenses with ptogtam rcvenues identifies the
extent to vhich each govemmental function and each identifiable business activity is self-financing ot draws from the
general revenues of The Gty.

Fund Financial Statemeats - During the yeat, The City segregates transactions related to certain City functions or
activities in separate funds in order to aid financial rnanagem€nt and to demonstate legal compliance. Fund financial
statements are designed to present financial information of The CiW at this more detailed level. Fund financial
statements are provided for both govemmental and pfopfietafy funds. Major individual govemmental and entetptise
funds are reported in separate columns.

Fund Accounting - The City uses funds to maintain its financial records during the yeat A fi.rnd is a Escal and
accounting entrty with a self-balancing set of accounts. The City uses three categories of funds: governmental,
proprietary and Frduciary.

Govemmentzl Fuads - Govemmental funds arc those through which most govemmental functions q?ically
ate financed. Govemmental fund tepotting focuses on the soutces, uses and balances of curtent financiai
resources. Expendable assets are assigned to the various govemmental funds accotding to the putposes for
which they may or must be used. Fund liabilities are assigned to the fund ftom which they will be liquidated.
The City reports the diffetetrce between govemmental fund assets and liabilities as fund balance. The following
ate The City's two major governmental funds:

The Geaeral Fund - The General Fund accounts for all finaocial tesoutces excqrt those tequited to
be accounted for h another fund. The General Fund's untestricted fund balance is available to The
City fot any purpose provided it is expended or transferred accotding to the general laws of Geotgia.

Anedcan Rescue Plan Act Fuad - Ttris fund is used to account for revenues and expendinrres of
the American Rescue Plan Act Cotonavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Fund.

Prcprietaty Funds - Ptoprietary hrnd financial statements include a statement of net Positiofl, statement of
revenues, expenses, ald changes in net position, and a statement of cash flows. Proprietary opetating income

rqrorted in proprietary fund Frnancial statements includes revenues and expenses telated to the primary,

continuing operations of the fund. The City's policy for defining opetating and non-opetating tevenues and

expenses in proprietary furrds is based on the following concepts. Operating tevenues and expenses genetally

tesult ftom providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection srith a ptoptietary fund's
principal ongoing business. Operating expenses for the proprietary fi-rnds include the cost of sales and services,

administrative expenses and the dqrreciation of capital assets. AII revenues and expenses not meeting this

deFrrition ate teported as non-operating revenues and expenses. The generally accepted accouoting pdnciples

applicable to ptoprietary funds are similar to those used by businesses in the pdvate sector. The follovring is

The City's maior proprietary fund:
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CiU of ltrashington, Georyia
Notes to ,he Basic F'inancial Sratements

December 31, 2022

The Vatet/Sewer Eatetprise Fund- This fund accounts fot the activities of the govemment's water
and sewer activities.

The Electric Entetpdse Fund -'Iltjs fund accounts for ttre uset fees and expenses for the electric
services provided to the citizens of the City

Private-sectot standards of accouoting and financial reporting issued priot to Decembet 1, 1989 are generally
followed in both the govemment-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the extent that those
standatds do not conflict with ot conttadict guidance of the Govemmental Accourtiflg Standatds Board.
Govemments also have the option of followhg subsequent pfivate-sector guidance for their business-rype
actir.ities and entetprise funds. subject to this same limitation. The Ciqv has elected not to follow subsequent
private-sector guidance.

Additionally, the City reports the following fund tlpes:

Governmental Fund Tvoes

Special Revenue Funds - These funds ate used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are

legally or donot testricted to expenditr:tes for specific putposes.

Capital Ptoyects Funds - These funds are used to account for financial tesources to be used for the acquisition
or consttuction of capital facilities (other than those financed by the ptoprietary fund$.

Permanent Funds - These funds are used to report resources that are legally restricted to the extent that only
eamings, not principal, may be used for purposes rhat support the repoting City's programs.

Comoonent Units

The Downtown Development Authority of Washhgton, Georgia's operations a.te accounted for using a curent
financial resources measutement focus and using the modiEed accrual basis of accounting. Under this method,
revenues are tecognized when susceptible to accrual. During the course of operations the govemment has

activity between funds for various purposes. Any residual balances outstanding at year end are teported as due
from/to other funds and advaoces to/from other funds. While these balances are tqrorted in fund f,nancial
statemerits, certain eliminations ate made in the ptepatation of t}te govemment-wide Frnancial statements.
Balances between the funds included in govemmental activities (i.e., the govemmental funds) are eliminated so
that only the ret amount is included as internal balances in the govemmental activities column. Similatly,
ba.lances between the funds induded in business-gpe activities (i.e., the entetprise funds) are eliminated so thzt
only the net amount is induded as intemal balances in the business-qpe activities column.

7-C- Measutement Focus

Govemment-wide Fioaacial Statemerfs - f'he goveffiment-wide Enan&l statements are reported us.ing the ecorumic

resoaflzs ,?tealt/rante tfocat andthe anrual bait oJ auouxtirg as are the proprietary fund Ernancial statements. Allassets and
liabilities associated with the opetation of The City, including capital assets, as well as infrastructure assets purchased
since January 7, 2003, ar,d long-term liabilities, are included in the Satement of Net position. The Statement of
Activities repots revenues and expenses- Revenues ate tecorded when eamed and expenses ate tecorded when a liability
is incutred tegardless of the timing of the related cash flours. Propetty taxes ate recognized as revenues in the yeat that
thev are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as twenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the
provider have been met.

26



Cit! of Washirrgton, Georgia
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Fund Financial Statemef,ts - Govemmental fund financial statements include a balance sheet and a statemenr of
revenues, expenditutes, and changes in fund balances for all major govemmental 6nds and non-major funds aggregated.
All govemmental firnds are reported usingthe-lloa 1f umfi ftaxriai rcto*net measunment.fons ar.d the nodifed atnual batit
oJdttotfiirg With this measutement focus, only cuttent assets and cuffent liabilities genenlly ate included in the balance
sheet. The Statement of Rwenues, Erpenditutes and Changes in Fund Balances lepotts the sources (i,e., revenues and
othet financing sources) and uses (i.e., expenditures and other financing uses) of current financial tesoutces. This
apptoach diffets ftom the mannet in which the govemmental activities of the govemment-wide Frnancial statements ate
reported. Govemmental fund financial statements therefore include a reconciliation vrith brief explanations to better
identi$, the relationship between dre govemment-vide statements and the govemmental fund statements. Like the
govemment-rvide st4tements, all proprietary firnd qpes are accounted for on the flow of economic resources
measurement focus on both financial teporting lwels. ,{ll assets and all liabilities associated with the operation of these
funds are included in the Statements of Net position. The Statements of Changes in Fund Net Position present
increases (i.e., rweaues) and deceases (i.e., expenses) in total net position. The Statement of Cash Flows provides
information about how The City finances and meets the cash flow needs ofits ptoptietary fund activities.

1-D. Basis of Accouating.

Basis of accounting determines when transactions are tecorded in the financial records and teported in the financial
statements. Govemment-u'ide financial statements are prepated using the accrual basis of accounting. At the fund
reporting level the govemmental funds use the modified accrual basis of accounthg. Proprieta-ty funds use the accrual
basis of accounting at both repoting levels. Differences in the accrual and the modified accrual basis of accounting
arise rn the recognition of revenue, the recording of deferred revenue and in the presentation of expenses versus

expenditures.

Reueaues - Exchange Transactiorzs - Revenue resulting ftom exchange transactions, in which each party gives and
receives essentially equal value, are recofded on tle accrual basis when the exchange takes place, On the modifred acctual
basis, revenue is tecorded when the exchange takes place and in the Escal year in which the tesoutces are measutable

and become available. Available means that t}le resources will be collected within the cwrcnt fiscal yeat ot are expected
ro be collected soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current Escal yeat. For The City, the phrase

"available fot exchange transacdons" means expected to be received within 60 days of the fucal year-end.

Revenues - Non-exchange Transactioas - Non-exchange ttansactions in which The City teceives value without
direcdy giving equal value in tetum, ilclude sales taxes, property taxes, grants and donations. On an acctual basis,

revenue ftom sales taxes is recognized in the period in which the taxable sale takes place. Revenue ftom ptoperty taxes

is tecognized in the Frscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue from gtants and donations is tecognized in the
fiscal year in which all eiigibility requitements have been satisfied. Eligibility requirements iodude timing requitements,
which specifr the yeat when the resources are required to be used or the year when use is 6tst permitted, matching
requirements, in which The City must provide local resoutces to be used for a specified putpose, and expenditute
requitements, in which the resources are provided to The City on a reimbursement basis. On a modified accrual basis,

revenue from non-exchafige transactions also must be available (i.e., collected within 30 &ys for sales taxes and vzithin

60 days for all other revenues) before it can bc recognized. Under the modified accual basis, the following rwenue
sources are considered to be susceptible to accrual p(opetty taxes, sales taxes and fedetal and state grants.

Pmgtan Revenues -Amou{rts repofted as program tevenues include 1) chatges to customets or applicants fot goods,

services, ot privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions, including
special assessments. Intemally dedicated resources are teported as genetal tevenues rather than as progtam teveflues.

Likewise, general tevenues include all taxes.

When both restticted and untestricted resources are available for use, it is The City's policy to use restticted resources

6rst, then, unrestricted tesoutces as they are needed.

27



CW of Washittgton, Georgia
Notes lo lhe Rasic Financial Stalemznls

Decembet 3I, 2022

Expenses/Expenditures - On the accrual basis of accounting, expenses are recognized at the time they ate
incured. On the modified accrual basis, erpenditures genetally are recognized in the accounting period in which the
related fund Iiability is incurred and due, if measurable.

Defened/Uaeamed Revenue - Tlte City recognizes twenues and other govemmentzl fund hnancial resources in
the accoundng petiod in which they become both measutable and available. I(&en an asset is received in a

govemmental fund, but the tevenue is not available, The City reports a deferred inflow of resources until such time as

the rwenue becomes available. The City limits the use of the term "defened" to iterns rcported as deferred outflows
of tesoutces ot deferred inflows of resoutces.

1-E. Assets, Liabilities and Fund Eguity

1-E-1. Cash, Caeh Equivalena and fnvest nerrts
Cash and cash equiyalents, as leported in the statement ofcash flows, includes amounts in demand deposits, amounts
with fiscal agents and investrnents w,ith an original maturity at thrce montis or less. Investments are reported at fait
value with accrued interest shown under a separate captiofl on tie balance sheet. Reinvested interest on certain debt
service and capital project furvestnents is included in the inyestrnent accounts.

T'l.re City measures and records its investments using fair value measurement guideliaes established by generally
accepted accounting principles. These guidelines recognize a thtee-tieted fair value hiemrchy, as foUov.,s:

o I-evel 1: Quoted prices for identical investments in active markets;
c l*vd 2: Observable inputs other than quoted market prices; and
o I-evel 3: Unobsen able inputs.

'I'he City reports investrnents using net asset value (NA! when NAV is calculated in a manner consistent rpith fait
value measurement guidelines, fair value is not readily determinable, and it is not probable for the investrnent to be
sold at an amount othet than NAV.

1-E-2. Receivebles
All trade and property tax receivables are teported net ofan allowznce for uncollectibles, where applicable. Uflbilled
water and sewet chatges are acctued as reccivables and tevenue at Decembet 31,2022.

1-E-3. Prepaid Items
Paymeflts made to vendors for services that will benefit petiods beyond December 31, 2022 are tecotded as prepaid
items using the consumption method by recording an asset for the ptepaid amount and teflecting the
expenditure/expense in the year in which the services ate consumed. At the fund reponing level, an equal amount of
fund balance is reserved, as this amount is not available fot general approptiation.

1-E-4. Capital Assea
Capital Assets are defrred by The City as assets wit}l an initial, individual cost urhich exceeds certain czprtalization
thresholds and have an estimated usefrrl life in excess of turo years. General capital assets ate those assets not speciEcally
related to activities reported in the ptoprietary funds. All general hftastrqctue assets (e.g., toads, bridges, sidewalks
and similar items) acquired ot constructed after December 31,2002 are repotted in tlle govemment-wide financial
statements. These assets generally result from expenditutes in govemmental funds. The City reports these assets in the
govemmental activities column of the govemment-szide Statement of Net position but does not report these assets ir
the govemmental fund financial statements. Capital assets utilized by enterprise funds ate repotted both in the business-

tlpe activities column of the govemment-wide Statement of Net Position andin the enterpdse funds'Statement of Net
Position.

2E



Clly of lloshington, Georgia
Notes to lhe Basic Financial Stutemcnls

December 31, 2022

All capital assets ate capitalized at cost (or estimated historical cost) and updated for additions and retLements duting
the year. Donated capital assets are recorded at their fair matket values as of the date received. The City maintains a
capitalization threshold of $15,000 per item for steets, buildings, and gtounds and $5,000 for all other capital assets
that has an estimated usefi.rl Iife in excess of two years. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to
the value of the asset ot matetially extend an asset's life are expensed, Interest incured during the consttuction of
capital assets utilized by the enterprise ftrnd is capitalized All repoted capital assets are dqrreciated except for land and
construction in ptogtess. Imptovements ate depteciated ovef the femaining useful lives of the related capital assets.
Useful lives fot inftastructute were estimated based on The City's historical recotds of necessary improvements and
replacement. Depreciation is computed using the sttaight-line method ovet the following usefii lives:

Assets
Buildinpp and ImproYements
Electric Plant Systems
Infrastructue
Equipment/Fuminte
Softvvate
Vehicles

Estimated
Useful Life in Years

t2-N
30
50

5- 15

5

5-20

At the inception of a capital lease, at the governmenal fund repotting level, expenditures and an "other financing
sources" of an equal amount are reported at the net present value of future minimum lease payments.

1-E-5. Compensated Absences
It is the Citv's policy to petmit employees to accumulate up to 160 houts of earned but unused vacation benefits which
will be paid to the employees upon separation ftom City service. Accumulated unpaid vacation pay amounts are acctued
when incured by the City in the govemment-vride and proprietary fund financial statements. The liability of the
prcprietary funds is recorded as afl expense and a liability of those funds as the beneFrts accrue to the employees. In
govemmental fund qpes, a liability is recorded only if the benefit has matured and is expected to be liquidated widr
expendable available financial resoutces.

1-E-6. Acuued Liabilities and Inag-tem, Obligetioas
All payables, accrued liabiLities and long-tetm obligations are rcpoted in the govemment-wide financial statements. In
genetal, govemmental fund payables and accrued liabilities that, once incutred, ate paid in a timely manner and in fi.rll

fiom current financial resources, are reported as obligations of the these funds. Capital leases are recogo.ized as a liability
in the govemmental fund financial statements when due. In the govemment-wide financial staternents, long-term debt
and other long-term obligations arc reported as liabilities in the applicable g<.rvemmental activities statement of net
position. Bood premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, ate deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds
using the effective interest method. Bond issuance costs lue reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term
of the related debt. In the firnd fiaancial statements, governmental type fimds recognize bond ptemiums and discounts,
as well as bond issuance costs, duting the cuftent period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other fmanciog
sources. Premiums teceived on debt issuances are teported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuarices

are reported as other Frnancing uses. fssuance costs, whether or not vrithheld ftom the actual debt proceeds received,
are reported as debt senrice expenditutes.

1-E-7. Fund EquiE

Fund equity at the govemmental fund financial repoting level is classiFred as "fund balznce." Fund equity for all other
reporting is classified as "net position."

Fund Balance - Generally, fund balance rcpresents the difference between t}te cutrent assets and cu:rent liabilities.
Ttre City restricts those portions of fund balance which ate legally segtegated for a specific future use or which do not
represent available, spendable resoutces afld tlerefore are not ayailable fot appropriation ot expenditure. Unrestricted
fund balance indicates that portion of firnd balance that is available fot apptopriation in future periods. Designations
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are management's intent to set aside these tesources for specific puqloses and are tenative management plans that are
subjcct to change.

GASB Statement 54 distinguishes fund balance classifications based on the relative strength of the constaints that
control the purposes for which specified amounts carr be spent. Beginning with the most restrictive constraints, fund
balance amounts will be, if applicable, repotted in the following categories:

1) Nonspendable fund balance - amounts that are not in a spendable form (e.g., inventory) or are legally or
contractually required to be maintained intact (e.g., permanent fund pdncipal).

2) Restticted fund balance - amounts that can be spent only fot the specific pu4roses stipulated by extetnal
pardes eithet constitutionally or through enabling legislation (e.g., gtants ot donations).

3) Committed fund balance - amouots that can be used only for the speciic purposes determined by a formal
action of 'Ihe City Council. Commiunents may be changed or lifted only by tefetring to the formal actioa that
imposed the constaint originally.

4) Assigned fund balance - amoutts iflterrdtd to be lsed by the government fot specific purposes. Intent can be
erptessed by The City Council or by a designee to whom the goveming body delegates the authotity. In
govemmental funds other than the general fund, assigned fund balance represents the amount that is nct
restricted ot committed. This indicates that fesources in other govemmental funds are, at a minimum, intended
to be used for t}le putpose of that fund.

5) Unassigned fund balance - includes all amounts not contained in other classiEcations and is the residual
dassifrcation of the general fund only. Unassigned amounts ate available fot any legal purpose.

When both restricted and uruestdcted tesoutces are available for use, it is The City's policy to use restricted resources
ftst, then unrestricted resoutces as they are needed,

Restricted fund balance is made up of funds which can only be used fot public wotks, culture and tecreation, housing
and development and capital proiects At December 31, 2022 the balance in testticted fund balance was $697,039.

Assigned fund balance is made up of funds intended to be used for public worhs, culture and recteation and housing
and development. At At Decembet 31,2022 the balatce in assigned fund balance was $65,142.

Net Position - Net Position tepresents the difference between assets and liabilities. Net Position invested in capital
assets consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, teduced by the outstanding balances ofany borowing
used for the acquisition, construction or improvem€flt of those assets. This net position amount also is adjusted by any
bond issuaace deferml amounts. Net Positioo are reported as restricted rshen there ate limitations imposed on their
use eithet through the enabling legislation adopted by The City ot thtough extemal restdctions imposed by cteditots,
grantots, laws or regulations of other govemments. All othet net positions are reported as untestticted. The City applies
restricted resources first when an expense is incured for pu4roses for which both restticted and unrestticted net
position are available.

1-E-8. Defetred outflows/inllows of rcsources
In addition to assets, the financial statements of The Cit-v will sometimes report a sepatate section fot defered outflows
of resources. This separate element, deferred outflows of tesoutces, reptesents a consumption of net position that
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applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recogoized as an outflow of resources in the form of expense ot
expenditure until that time. The City teports deferred outflows ofresoutces related to its defined benefit pension plan.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position urill somelimes report a sE arate section fot deferred inflows
of tesoutces, This separate Elancial statemant element, deferred inflows of rcsources, represents an acquisition of net
position that appJies to a future period(s) arrd so will not be recogrized as an inflow of tesources (revenue) until that
time. The govemment has only one type of item, which arises only under a modified accrual basis of accounting that
qualifres for rcpotting in this category. Accotdingln the itern, unavailable revenue, is reported only in the govemmental
funds ba.lance sheet, The govemmental fi:nds report unavailable ptoperty taxes tevenues. The Gty also rqrorts deferred
inflows of resources telated to its dehned benefit pension plans. These amounts are deferred and recognized as an
inflow of resources in the petiod that the amounts become available.

1-E-9. Operuting Revenues and Expenses
Opetating tevenues are those tevenues that ate genetated ditecdv ftom &e primary activity of the ptoprietary firnds.
For The Ciq', these fevenues ate charges fot services fot water. Operating expenses are necessary costs ilrcutred to
provide tle good or service that are the prirrary activity ofeach fund.

1-E-10. Contibutions of Capital
Contributions of capital in ptoprietary fund financial statements arise from outside contributions of capital assets, tap
in fees to the extent they exceed the cost of the connection to the system or &om grants or outside conttibutions of
tesources testricted to capital acquisition and construction.

I - E - I 1. In te tfun d Ac tiuity
Exchange transactions between fund-s are rqroted as teveoues in the sellet funds and as expenditures/expenses in the
purchaser frrnds. Flows of cash or goods from one fund to anothet s,ithout a requirement for repayment are reported
as interfuad transfets. Interfirnd transferc ar€ reported as other Enancing soutces/uses in govemmental funds and in
the after non-operating revenues/e:'penses section in propdetaty funds. Repayments from funds tesponsible for
particular expenditutes/expenses to the funds that initially paid for ttrem are not presented on the financial statements
(i.e., they are netted). Transfers betw'eclr govemmental and business-qpe activities on the govemment-wide Statement
of Activities are reported as general revenues. 

T 
tansfets between funds reportecl in the goyelrunental activities column

are eliminated. Transfers between funds reported in the business-type activities column ate eliminated.

1-E-12. Estimates
The pteparation of the Frnancial statemenrs in conformity with accounting pdnciples genetally accepted in the Uflited
States of America (GAAP) requires malrxgement to make estimates and assurnptions that affect the amounts rePorted
in the financial statements and the accomparfng flotes. Actual results may diffet ftom those estimates.

Note 2 - Stewardship, Compliance and Accotnability

2-A. Budgetary Infomtatioa -Tbe City follows these ptocedures in establishing the budgetary data fot the firnds
reflected in the Enancial statements,

1. In November, a ptoposed operating budget for the fiscal year commencingJanuary 1 is submitted to the City Council.
The operating budget includes proposed expenditures and t}re means of financing them.

2. Public hearings are conducted to obtain taxpayer comments.
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3. Prior to January 1,.the budget is legally enactcd through passage ofan ordLrance.

.1. All budget rer.-isions ot changes must be apptoved as requited by Georgia law and adminiseative policy. T'ransfer of
budgetary amounts between line items within a fund can be done vzith the apptoval of the City Administtator. Transfer
of amounts between each department of each fund must be approved by the City Council. This is the legal level of
budgetary control.

5. The funds obtained ftom any source may be used fot any appropriations named in said budgeq except funds
speciFrcally restricted by the City ordinance or State law.

6. The City does not employ the use of encumbrance accounting.

7. Unexpended appropdations lapse at the end of the year.

8. At the end of the fiscal year, all amendments to the budget are approved thtough passage of an ordinance.

Note 3 - DetAiled Notes on AII Funds

3-4. Deposits and fflvesfrnents

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits
Custodial credit risk is the risk thag in the event of a financial institution failure, the City's deposits may not be retumed.
The City's policies require that all deposits be fedetally hsuted or firlly collatetalized.

Interest Rate Risk
'fhe City does not have a formal investment pciicy that limits investment maturities as a means of maoaging its exposure
ro fair value losses arising from incrcasing intcrest rates.

Credit Risk
State of Georgia law limits .investments to include cettificates of deposit, tepurchase agreements, ditect and agency
obligations of the United States, obligations of any corporation of the United States govemment, obligations of the
State of Georgia or other states, obligrtions of other political subdivisions of the State of Georgia, and pooled
investment programs of the State of Georgia. The City does not have a formal investrnent policy that would fr:rther
Iimit its iflvestment choices. Investrnents are rq>orted at fair value,

Concentration of Credit Risk
The City does not have a formal policy on the amount the City may invcst in any one issuer.

Foreign Curency Risk
The City has no investrirents deriomiflated in a foreign curtency.
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The City is a participant in tle Municipal Electric Authority of Georgta (r4EAG). The MEAG board apptoves an annual
system budget from which MEAG bills its participants. At the end of the veat, adiustrnents are rnade by MEAG to each

paticipant's billings to agree with acrual cost. \f,/henwer MEAG tecovets funds &om the City in excess of its actual
costs to serve the City, the City may elect to have theit funds deposited in MEAG's Voluntary Flexible Operating
Account or Generation Trust Account fund in lieu of teceiving a tefund. Ttre voluntary sabilizatiofl fund is used to
reduce future costs of the City at its discretion while also eaming interest. The City is authorized to direct MEAG to
retain or use the disctetionary funds. The genetation trust account is used to offset the City's share of future MEAG
generation ptojects.

The Municipal Competitive Trust accouflts are held in the Intetmediatr:, lntermediate Extended Maturity, and Shott-
term Portfolios; these portfolios ate not rated. At tle end of the curent year, the average weighted maturity of the
Intemediate, Intemediate Extended Maturit-.v, and Shortterm Portfolios wete 41.06, 53.00, and 5.73 months,
respectively. At the end of the cunent year, the City's balance in the Voluntary Flexible Operating Account and the
Gereration Trust Account'was $1,697,1 38 and $1,01 3,066, tespectively.

At the end of the cutrent year, the City had the following investrnents:

Investment by fait value level

Maiot Funds

Genetal Fund

Certificates of deposit

Lwel 3 Total

$

Electtic Fund

MEAG Competitive Trust 2,770,204 2,710204

Nonmajot Funds

Govemmental

Certificates ofdeposit 69.917 69.977

Total s___Jia6 s----219-n4 3---2J83-ffi

l-evel 1 Level 2

$ 3,379 $ $ 3,319

33



Clly of Wushington, Georgia
Noles to lhe Basic Financial Sratements

December 31, 2022

3-8. Receivables
Receivables at Decenrber 31,2022 consisted of taxes, interest and accounts Qillings for uset charges, including unbilled
utility rece.ivables). Receivables and payables ate recorded in The City's fiaancial statements to t}re extent that the
amounts are determined to be material and substantiated not only by supporting documentation, but also by a

teasonable, systematic method of determining their existence, completeness, valuation and, in the case of receivables,
collectability. Receivables at December 31, 2022 consist of the following;

Governmental Funds:

Accounts

IfltefgoYemmental

Taxes

Net Receivable

Ptoprietary Funds:
Accor.rnts Receivable
Less A.llowance fot r.rncollectible

Net Receivable

General
$ 38,124

47,371

430.329

ffi09a21

W'ater/Sewet
$ 693,346

3t 1.530

$l&L816

2077

SPLOST
$

61,699

$___61^699

Electtic
$4,933,677

1.893.443

$ 3 040 234

f SPLOST

74.032

$___14-032

Solid Waste

$138,77 6
53-605

L,8L171

$

3-C. Ptopetty Taxes
The City bills and collects its own property taxes. City property tax revenues are recognized when levied to the extent
that they result in curent receivables. Assessed values are an approximation of matket value. At the govemment-wide
level, propert, taxes are tecognized as tevenue vhen they are levied. The governmental fund statements recognize
property taxes as revenue as soon as they ate considered to be both measrteable and available.
Property tax rates are set by the City Council each year and are limited by statutory or constitutional provision.
Property values are assessed as ofJanuary lst each year. Property taxes for the 2021 tax digest year, based upon the
assessments as ofJanuary 1,20?2, wereleied on October ll,2l22,brlled otDecember 28,2022, and due on January
26,2023.

3-D. Deficit Fund Net position

The City had no deficit net position balances at Decembet 37,2022.

3-E. Excess of E4tenditutes Ovet Appmpriations

the City had excess expenditutes over budgeted amounts in the following Genetal Fund areas:

Judrcial
Public Works

$ 2,315
$ s,489
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3-F, Capial Assete

Capital asset activit_v for the year was as follovs:

Govemrnental Activities
Capital assets not being depteciated:

Land
Consm:ction in Progress

Historical Tteasures

Total capital assets, not being depreciated

Capit"al assets being depreciated:

Buildings and Improvements

Equipment and Vehicles

Softwate

Infrastructu-te

Total capital assets, being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation fot:
Buildings and Imptovements
Equipment aad Vehicles

Softwate

Infrastructure

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets being depreciated, oet

Business-Tr,ne Activities

Capital assets oot berng depreciated:

Land
Construction in Progtess

Total capital assets, not being depreciated

Capital assets being depreciated:

Buildings and Improvements

Machinery and Equipment
Vehicles

Infrastructure

Total capital assets, being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings and Improvements

trf achinery and Equipment
\.ehicles

Infrastructure

Total accumulated depteciation

City o! Washinglorr, Georyia

Notes to the Basic Finarrcial Statemenls

December 31,2022

$ 1,242,035 $

30,775

81

Beginning

Balance Increase Decrease

Ending
Ba.lance

$

(30,773)
$ 1,242,035

81 714

1,323,753

5,353,818

3,723,587

7 5,335

4,265,360

13J18,100

(2,667,462)

(2,599,883)

(7s,33s)

(1,598,414)

8

1,354,526

5,323,045

3,723,587

75,335

3984,s90
13,106,557

(30,773)

30,773

280,770

311,543

(2,s70,324)

(2,471,700)

Q 5,33s)

(1,502,95n

(e7,138)

(128,183)

(estsl
(6,620,316) (320,778) (6,941,094)

6,486,241 (9,23s) 6,477,006

Total g;vemmental activities capital asses, aet $ 7,840,7 67 $ (e23s) $ (30,773) $ 7,800,7s9

t$ 207,190 $

736,686

1,293,557

1,600,172

25,586,504

316,940

95,771

514,562

$ 207,190

885,924

1,093,114

736,686

1,610,497

1,696,543

26,101,066

30,144,792

(s83,320)

(9s3,686)

(1,201998)

(12,072,732)

(14,811,736)

545,143 340,781

752,333 340,741

29217,519 927,273

(s66,804) 06,s16)
(829,144) (124,s42)

0p8s,082) (116,916)

01,636,939) (435,793)

(14,117,969) (693,767)

Total capital assets being deprcciated net 15,099,550 233,506 15,333,056

Toml business type activities capital assets, net S 15,851,883 S 514,287
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3-F. - Capital Assets - conrtnued
Depreciation expense was charged to fulctions/programs of the pdmary government as follows:

Governmenta.l Activities:
General Govemment
Public Safety
Pubiic Works
Health and Welfare
Culture and Recreation
Flousing and Development
Total Dqrreciation Expense

Business-Trpe Activities:
rWatet and Sewer
Electtic
Solid Waste

T'otal Depreciation Expense

2023
2024
2025
2026
2027
2028-2032
2033

$ 849
100,136
'tr7,577

69.755
10,459
22.OO2

$__ieJfi

$ 484,943
't21,336

87.488

L49u67

3-G. - Long Tetn Liabilities

Govemment Actiuities

In s talhn efl t SaIe Agft em en t

During 2018, the Cig- enteted into an Installment Sale ,\teement v/ith BB&T (now TRUIST) in the amount of
$975,000 for the purposc of constructing a new fue station. '-fhe insta.llment sale agreement bears interest at 4.057o.
The balance of the installment sale agreeroentwas $762,743 at the end of the current year. The installment sale

agteement calls for 57 quatetly payroents of $22,824 beginningJanuary 30,2019 and matures January 30,2033. This
note is collateralized by a secruity interest in the purchased property. Upon an event of default, all outstaflding
principal and accrued interest may be declared immediately due and payable, and the property may be repossessed by
the lendet.

Debt sen-ice requirements to matutity fot the installment sale agfeement are as follows:

Yeat Princioal Intetest Total

$ 61,328
63,850
66,47 6
69,209
72,057

407,228
22.595

&___JAJ13

$ 29,968
27,446
24,820
22,087
79,239

61,853
229

$__1_85^642

fi 91,296
91,296
91.,296
91,296
91,296

469.081
22.824

$ 948.385
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LG, - Long Tenn Liabilities (continued)

B u s in e s s - T1';pe Ac tiui tie s

l\Iotes from Direct Bormwniag

a, Dudng 2003, the City entered into a ditect borrowing agreement witll Geolgia Envircnmental Facilities
Authority in the orighal amount of $789,731, beathg interest at 3.947o. The balance of the note was $135,621
at the end of the cuffent year. The note calls for quartetly payments of principal and ifltetest of $14,313 and
matures October 2024. The purpose of the note was for construction of sewer rehabilitation. Upon an event of
default, all outstanding principal and accrued interest may be declared immediately due and payable. Note
payments and petformance obligations ate secured by revenues, fees and charges collected by the City.

b. Dudng 2004, the City entered ilto a direct borrowing agreement with Geotgia Envitonmental Facilities
Authotity in the original amount of$1,599,998, beadng iflterest at 4.0670. The balance of tlre note was

$,109,764 at the end of the current year. The note calls fot monthly payments of principal and intercst of $9,746
and matures Febru ary 'l , 2027 . T\e pu4>ose of the note was to financc improvemelrts to the Water and Sewer
system. Upon an event of default, all outstanding principal and accrued interest may be declared immediately
due and payable. Note pa).ments and performance obligadons ate secuted by revenues, fees and chatges
collected by the City.

c. Dudng 2010, the City enteted into a direct borrowing agreernent with Georgia Environmental Facilities
Authotity in the original amoun t of $7 ,446,27 5, beains zero interest. The balance of the note wzs $5,292,963 at
the end of the currerit year. The note calls for monthly pa)'rnents of $37,539 beginningJanuary 37,2014 and
matures December 31, 2034. The purpose of tie note was to finance improvements to the Water and Sewer
system. Upon an event of default, all outstanding ptincipal and accnred intetest mav be declated immediately
due and payable. Note payments and perfotmance obligations are secured by revenues, fees and chalges

' collected by the City.

d. During 2017, the City enteted ilto a direct botrowing agreement v/itl Geotgia Environmental Facilities
Authority in the original amount of $204,203, bearing interest at 1.90ol0. The balance of the note was $159,911
at thc end of the cutrent year. 1-he note calls for monthly payments of $1,308 beginning Novembet 1, 2018 and
matutes October 1, 2033. The purpose of the note was to finance improvements to the Water and Sewet
system. Upon afl event of default. all outstanding principd and accrued interest may be declared immediately
due and papble. Note payments and performance obligat-ions are secured by revenues, fees and charges

collected by the City.

Duriry 2021 , the City eotered into a direct boroqring agreement with Ceotgia Envitonmental Facilities
Authodty in the origrnal amount of $273,411, bearing interest at 0.150/o. The balance of the note was $177,950
at the eod ofthe current year. The qote calls for monthly payments of$4,574 beginning Match 7,2021 ar.d
matures March 1, 2026. The purpose of the note was to finance the costs of putchasing a sanitadon ttuck and
apptoximately 2,100 roliing garbage canisters. Upon ao svent of default, all outstanding principal and accued
intetest may be declated immediatelt'due and payable. Note payrnents and petformance obligations ate secuted
by tevenues, fees and charges collected by the City.

e
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3-G. - Long Temt Liabilities (continued)

B usiness -Type Ac tiui tiee (con tin ued)

Note6 from Ditect Borowning (continued)

,\nnual debt service requitements to matutity ftom direct bortowings are as follows:

Year Princioal Inrerest Total

2023
2024
2025
2026
2027
2028-2032
2033-2034

Governmental Activities:
Installment Sale

Compensated Absences
'I otal Governmental long
term liabilities

Business-type Activities:
Notes Payable
Compensated Absences

Total Business-qpe long
term liabilities

$ 672,782
679,440
657,547
567,982
464,239

2,325,260
808.959

$3J%.e9

$ 22,476
15,818

9,033
3,787
r,920
5,538

280

$___18352

$ 695,258
695,258
666,580
571,769
466,759

2,330,798
809.239

$_6235^06r.

Long-term liability activig* fot the year ended Decembet 31, 2022, was as follows:

Balance
12/31/ 2021

$ 821,649

_ 70.078

Balance
t2/31/ 202t

$ 6,842,584
29.622

Additions
$

13.489

Additions
$

27.203

Deductions
$ 58,906

I)eductions
$ 666,37s

Balance
72/31/?r22
$ 762,743

81.5(t7

Due Within
One Year
$ 61,328

83 567

$:391J21 $____133E9 $__16^906 L_146310 $144895

Balance
72/37 /2022

$ 6,176,209
50.825

Due Within
One Yeat

$ 672,782
50-825

L:@2W! fi----2lloi {--666-YS $--nU-934 $,,J231fr7
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3-II. - Resticted and Assigned Fund Balances

1he following is a summary of restticted and assigned fund balances of the govemmenal
funds as of the end of the current yeat:

General

Nonmajot
Gpvemmental

Total

Govemmental

Funds

Restricted For:

Public V'otks
Transportation Improvements

Cemetery Improvements

Culture and Recreation

Histotical Properties

Callaway Plantation

Housing Development

Economic Development

Capital Projects

Assigned Fot:
Public Wotks

Cemetery Carc

Culture and Recreation

Callaway Plantation Operations

Callaway Plantation Fum.ishings

Housing Development

Economic Development

$

2,290

27,869

8,118

40,r37

2,37 4

17,867

227,208

7

10,408

40,1,37

27,869

397

2,374

17,867

$ 221,208 $

7

397

$ 30,166 $ 666,805 $ 696,971

$ 38,067 $ 38,067{

$ $ 143 $ 65,143
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3-1. Employee Retitement Plan

PIaa Desctiption and Pmvisions - Plan Description. The City, as authotized by the City Council had established a

defined benefit peasion plan (The Citv of Washington Retirement Plan) covering ali full-time employees. This plan was

closed out fot all new employees with a stat date after Janrtary 1,2O2O. The plan now only covers those employees
who were eligible before that date. The City's pension plan is affiliated with the Georgia Municipal Employee BeneEt
Svstem (GMEBS)! afl agent multiple-employer pension plan administered by the Georgia Municipal Association.
Participants are not allowed to contribute to the Plan. The City does not own any securities on its own. Investment
income from the securities is allocated on a pro rata basis. The Georgia Municipal Association issues a publicly available
financial rcport that includes financial statements and tequired supplementary information fot GMEBS. 'fhat report
may be obtained by vrriting to Georgia N{unicipal Association, fusk Management and Employee BeneFrt Services, 201

Pryot Streeq N\V, Adanta, Georgia 30303 ot by calling (404) 688-0472.

Benefits Ptouided
The GMEBS PIan provides tetfuement, disability, and death benefits to plan membets and beneficiaries. A1l eligible
Cit-v employees participated in the plan after flve months of employment. Vesting takes place after five yeats ofservice.
Normal retirement benefits arc available to employees who retire at ot aftet age 65 with five yeats of sewice. Eatly
retirement is available after age 55 with 10 years of service. Retirement benefits are based upon €e, avetage

compensation and years of service. BeneEt provisions are estzblished under Public Retirement S,'stem Standards Law
(Georgia Code Section 47-20-10). Employees are not pennitted to conftibute to the Plan. The City cofltributes the
entire cost of t-he Plan, using the actuatial basis desctibed in the annual valuation report

Contibutions
Employees ar€ not permitted to contdbute to the Plan. The City contdbutes the entire cost of the PIan, using the
actuarial basis described in the annual valuation teport. The plan is subject to minimum funding standatds of the
Georgia Public Retirement Systems Standards Law. The Board ofTrustees ofGMEBS has adopted an actuatial funding
policy for the plan which meets state minimurn requirements and will accr.mulate sufficient funds to ptovide the benefits
under the plan. The funding policy for the plan is to contribute an amount equal to or greatet tlan the recommended
contdbution rate. This rate is based on the estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of benefits eamed by plan
membets dudng the year, wi& an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. Fot the year ended
December 31,2022, the City's tecommended contdbutions of$266,835 was 21.210% of expected payroll.

Plan Membetship
As ofJuly 1,2022, the axrent Plan membenhip includes the follouing categoties ofparticipants:

Retirees and beneficiaries curendy receiving benefits 79
Terminated vested participants 28
Active vested participants 23
Active nonvested participants 3

Total membership in the Plan rc3
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Actuatial assumptions

The total pension liability in the July t, 2022 act:uatial valuation was determined using the follouring actuarial
assumptions, applied to all pedods included in the measutement:

Actuarial Assumotions:
Net investment fate of retum
Projected salaty increases
Cost of livirg adjustments
Inflation

Asset class:

Domestic equity
Intemational equity
Real estate

Global {ixed income
Domestic fi-red income
Cash

7.3750/"
2.250yo
2.000"h
2.25OYo

N{onalitl rates for the July 1, 2022 valuation wete based on t(e RP-2000 Combined Healthy Motality Table with sex-

distinct rates, set for*,ard two years for males and one yeat for females.

The mottality and economic actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2021 valuation wete based on the tesults of an

acnrarial experience study for the period January 1, 2015 to June 30,2019.

The long-term expected rate of retum on pension plan investnents was determined using building-block method in
which best-estimate mnges of expected future real tates of return (expected retums, net of pension plan investrnent
expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These tanges are combined to ptoduce the long-tetm
expected rate of retum by weighting the expected futute real rates of retum by the target asset allocation percentage
and by adding expected inflation. The diffetence betrveen the tesuldag nte and the rate on the ongoing basis is a margin
for adwerse deviation

Best estimates of arithmetic real ntes ofretum for each major asset class included ia the pension plan's tatget allocation
as of lvlarch 31, 2020, ate summarized io the table below.

Target
Allocation

45%
20%
L00h

50k
20Yo

00h
7OlYo

Expected real
rate of tetum

6.55%
7 .300h
3.65./0
0.50%
o.400k

Discout t tate
'fhe discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was7.375%o. The projection ofcash flows used to detetmine
the discount rate assumed that plan mernbet conttibutions will be made at the curent contribution rate and that City
contributions will be made at rates equa.l to the diffetence between actuarially determined conttibution ntes and the
membet rate. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan's Educiary net position was projected to be available to
make all projected future beneflt payments of current plan members, Thetefore, the long-term expected tate of tetum
on pension plan investrnelts was applied to all of the ptojected benefit pa;,ments to determine the total pensior liability.
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Changes on the Net Pension Liability of the City
'I'lre changes ir the components of the net pension lirability of the City for the year ended December 31, 2022, stete as
follows:

Balarrces at December 31-,2021

Changes fot the yeat:

Sewice Cost

Interest

Difference betweelr expected and actual experience

Changes of assumptions

Contibutions-emplol'er

Contribu tions -employee

Other

Net investment income

Benefit pa)'ments

Administtative expense

Net Changes

Balances at December 3'l, 2022

196 Dectease
6.37 5"h

$9,80,+,139 $9,180,562 fi 623,577

Total Pension

Liability

(^)

13,679

70t,552

91,849

Plan Fiduciary

Net Position

o)

562,672

(670,384)

(18,500)

Net Pension

Liability

(^)-(b)

43,619

701.,552

91,849

323,51',1 (323,511)

(s62,672)

(,670,384)

18,500

$9,970,77s $9,377,861 $592,914

The tequired schedule of changes in the City's net pension liability and telated tatios immediately following the notes
to the Frnancial statements presents multiyear trend infotmation about whethet the value of plan assets is increasing or
decreasing over time telative to total pension liability.

Sensitiuity of rte net pension liability to changes in the discount rate

'Ihc following presents the net pension liability of the City, calculated using the discount rate of 7.375 percent, as well
as what the City's net pension liabiligv would bc if it were calculated ushg a discount rate that is 1 percentage-point
lower (6.375%o) or 1 percentage point higher (8.3757") than the cuffent rate:

166,636 797,299 (30,633)

Cuffent
Discount tate

7.375.k
1olo Increase

8.37syo

$l-682-05r $l9e915 $__1324-690)Ciqv's net pension liability (asseQ
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Pension Expense and Defetted Outllows ofResources and Defeted fnflows ofResources Related a Pensions

For the year ended Decernber 37,20?2 the City recognized pension expense of $147,304. At December 31,2022 the
City repoted deferred outflows of resoutces and deferred inflows of resoutces related to pensions from the following
sources:

Differences between expected and actual experience
Changes in assumptiotrs
Net difference betcreen projected and actual eamings

on pension plan investrnents

(934.897,

Total $___459% $_193r.897)

,\mounts reported as defered outflows of resources and (defered inflows) of tesources related to pensions will be
recognized in pension expense as follows:

Defered
Outflows of
Resourccs

$ 4s,92s

Deferred
Inflows of
Resources

$

Amount
$ (165,492)

(267,928)
(475,736)

20,1.84

Year Endins Dec 31.
2023
2024
2025
2026

Changes on the Net Penetba Liability of the City

,\ctuarial valuations involve estimates of the value ofteported amounts and assumptions about the probability of
events fa.r into the future, ard ach.rarially determined amounts ate subiect to continual tevision as tesults ate compared
to past expectations and neq/ estimates are made about the future. Actuarial calculations teflect a long-term
perspective. Calculations are based on the substantive plan in effect as of July 7,2022.
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fl. - Deftned Contdbution Plan

The City participates in a defetted compensation plan, admirristeted by Geotgia Mr.rnicipal Employee Benefrt S)'stem
(GMEBS), for employees under Intemal Revenue Code section 457. The plan allows any full time employees to
voluntarily defet teceipt of their gtoss compensation, not to exceed the maximum annual contdbution established by
the Intemal Revenue Sewice. The City conttibutes 370 of the employees sala4'and matches up to an additional 2ol0.

The City's match is deposited into the 4O1(a). All amounts of compensation under the plan, all property and rights
putchased with those amounts, and all income attributable to those amounts, property or rights are solely the property
and rights of the participants in the deferred compensation plan.

Additionally, the City provides a single emplover 401(a) defined contribution plan established and administered by the
City for all firll time employees. At the end of the curent year, there v/€re 21 plan membets. Employees are not
required to contdbute to the Plan. Employees ate eligible after one month of employrnent and are fi.rlly vested after
five years. PIan ptovisions and contribution requirements a.te established and may be amended by tesolution of the
City Council. Separate Frnancial statements are flot issued for the Plan. For the current year, the City's conttibutions to
the .101(a) Plan werc $62,122 and the employees contdbuted $18,525 to the 457 Plan.

In accordance with GASB Statemeot No. 32, "Accounting and Finan&l Reporting for Intemal Revenue Code
Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans," the assets and liabilities of the City's Deferred Compensation Plan ate
not included within the City's fmancial statements.

3-K - Inter{uad Balances and Ttansfers

Transfets are used to repoft revenues from the fi.rnd that statute ot budget tequites to collect them to the fund that
statute ot budget requifes to expend them and unrcstticted revenues collected in the Genetal Fund to finance vadous

progfams accounted for in other funds in accotdance wit}l budgetary authodzations; to segtegate money fot anticipated

capital projects; to provide additional resources fot current operations or debt service; and, to tetum money to the fund
from which it was ori5'inally provided once a project is completed. AII transfers either occur on a rcgulat basis or are

consistent with the purpose of the fund making the transfer.

On the fund financial statements, rcceivables and payables resulting from short-tem interfrrnd loans ate classified as

"due to/from other funds." These amounts are elimftrated in the govemmental and business-type activities columns of
the Statement of Net position, except for any oet residual amounts due between the agregate goyernmental activities

and the aggregate business-tfpe aaivities, which arc teclassi6ed and presented as intemal balances. All due to,/ftom
balances are expected to be repaid within ofle year. There were no interfund balances at Decembet 31,2022.
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Interfund transfers for the year ended December 31, 2022, detailed below-, consisted of the following amounts and
represent charges fot sewices or reimbutsable expenses.

Transfen From
General Fund
General Fund
General Fund
Electric
Intemet
Electric
Electtic
Water/Sewet Fund
Intemet
Solid V'aste
ARPA
Intemet
Water,/ Sewet Fund
CHIP/CDBG
SPLOST

Transfers To
Water/Sewer Fund
ARPA
Solid Vhste
General Fund
General Fund
E911
CHIP/CDBG
Electric
Electric
Fllecttic
Electric
Solid !7aste
Solid Waste
Watet/Sewet Fund
Water/Sewer Fund

Total
$1,070,237
$ 15,989

$ 278,086

$1,7 62,9s2
$1,096,ss9
$ 137,452
$ 558,180
$ 80s,248

$ 3,998

$ 298,168

$ 8,310

$70
$ 66,267

$ 340,781

$ 251,312

Note4-OrtetNotes

zl-A. Risk Management

The City is exposed to vadous dsks of loss telated to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of assets; errors and
omissions; injuties to employees; natutal disastets; and workefs compensation for which The City cardes commetcizl
lnsutance.
I'hete have been no decreases in insurance coverage from the prior yeat. Setded claims from these risks have not
exceeded coverage fot the past three years.

4-8. Contingencies zfl d Commianents

Commitments

The City has entered into Power Sales Contracts $/ith the Municipal Electdc Authority of Georgia (NIEAG). The
contracts require the City to purchase from MEAG all of the City's bulk power supply, othet than powet supplied by
Fedetally-owned generation ptojects. MEAG is authorized to establish mtes and chatges so as to ptoduce revenues
sufficient to cover its costs. The City's paymcnt obligations are general obligations to the payment of which the City's
full faittr and ctedit and taxing powers are pledged. The City purchased bulk powet totaling $16,702,259 from MEAG
during the current year. The City's futule minimum payment obligations to the Authodtv will be based on the
Authority's costs and the City's yeady demand for bulk power supply. At the end of the cufferit year, the outstanding
debt of MEAG was approximately $7.76 billion. The City of Washington's guarantee varies by individual MEAG
ptoject and toals fi67 ,197 ,07 5.

'Ihe City has adopted the ptovisions of a Municipal Competitive Trust agreement betureen the City and MEAG.
NIEAG e stabiished the Trust for the mutual benefit of i{EAG and its wholesale customets who elect to become
participants. The Trust was created to provide a means to mitigate the expected differential between "after
detegulation" market rates fot power and the associatcd costs of genetating that power. The Trust created four qpes
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of accounts that ate held by MEAG in the name of the City. The flexible operating trust account includes funds that
are available to the City fot operating costs arid rate stabilization. As of the end of the curent yeat, the balance in this
account was $1,697,138. This amount is included in umestricted investrnents in the Electric Fund. The generation
trust account is used to offset the City's share of future MEAG generation projects. As of the end of the current yeat,
the balance in this account was $1,013,066. This amount is included in restricted investrnents in the Electric Fund.

Contingencies

The City teceives grant funds, principally ftom the U.S. Govemment for various programs. Expenditures from these
grants are subject to audit and the City is contingendy liable to refund amounts received h excess of allowable
expenditures.

Ilased on the advice of the Gty attomey, there are no measutable, material claims outstanding against the City at the
end of the cuttent year.

Approximately 407o of electric chatges are genetated ftom two customers.

+C. Ioint Yentures

Under Georgia law, the City, in conjunction with other cities and counties rn the Cental Savannah River Area, is a

membet of the CSRA Regional Commission (CSRARC) and is tequired to pay annual dues thereto. Membership in an
RC is rcqufued by the Official Code of Geotgia Annotated (OCGA) Section 50-8-34, which ptovides for the
organizational structure of the RCs in Geotgia. The RC boatd membemhip includes the chief elected official of each
county and municipality of the area. OCGA 50-8-39.1 provides that the member govemments ate liabie for any debts
or obligations ofan RC. A copy ofthe CSRARC financial statements can be obtained ftom the:

Central Savannah Rivet Area Regional Commission
3023 fuverwatch Parkway, Surte A

Augusta, Georgia 30907.

The Washhgton-Wilkes Payroll Development Audrority is a govemmental organization chartered by the State of
Georgia. It is formed for the purpose of promoting business development in Wilkes County, Geotgia and the City of
Vrashington, Georgia. The Authority is reported as a disctetely presented cornponent unit of Wilkes County, Georgia.
The Authodtl has a Frve member board consisting of the Wilkes County Chairman, the City of Washington Mayor, the
Pre sident of the Chamber of Commerce, one appointee by the County Chairman and one appointee by the City Mayor.
A copy of the Authority financial statements can be obtained ftom the Washington-Wilkes Payroll Development
Authority, 23 Coutt Streeg Washingto4 Georg;a 30673.

4-D. Related Orgzrlizatiorrs

On August 21, 1951, the City oflyashington (the "City") enteted into a coopetative agteement with the Housing
Authority of the City of lfashington, Georgia (the "Housing Authority"). Under the terms of this agteement, the
Housing Autlority agrees to endeavor to secure a contract or con&acts rltth the Public Housing Authority (the

"PFIA") for loans and annual contribut.ions and agtees to endeavot to dwelop and administer one or more P(ojects.
The obligations of the patties apply ody to proiects aggregating not mote than 250 units of low-rent housing located

within the corporate limits of the City of Washington. Under the constitution and statutes of the State of Geotgia, all
ptojects are exempt from all real and personal property taxes levied or imposed by any taxing body. The City agrees

that it $/ill not lerT or impose real or personal ptoperty taxes or special assessments upon such projects or upon the
Flousing Authr-rrity with respect thereto as long as (1) the ptojects ate owned, or (2) a contract exists between the
Housing Authority and the PFLA, ot (3) bonds issued in connection vzith the project ate outstanding.
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*E. Intemal Actiuity

It is The City's policy to eliminate or reclassi$ all intetnal activity and balances teported as interfrrnd activity and
balances in the firnd financial statements in the govemment-wide Statement of Net position and Activities. These
eLiminations occur fust within the govemmental activities column and within the business-type activities column and
then separately in the totzl primary govemment column.
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CITY OT WASEMGTON. GEORGIA
Rf,QUIR'ED SUPPLEMf,NT RY INFORMATION

XETIREMENT II,AN
SCBEDULE OF CSANGES ON NET PXNSION LIAEILITY

AND Rf,I-AIED RATIOS
rON TgE YEAR ENDED I'ECEMBERsI,2OZ

Chmg.s of ba.fil tmJothtr
DiEs€Ms betwan qpel.d .nd a€1u.I €xpsi .e

Benefi paym s. irchdirg retuods ofomploye @d.ibutioB

Net .haeE in lo$l pemion li.bilily

YarEnd Y.irE.d Yu.End l'6rEnd Y..rE d Yar End

__&_ 2021 __4__ __p_ ____:9!!__ ____41__

t 4t,6t9 t 47,186 $ 6t,728 i 68,84i $ 72,014 t 78,718

70t.552 694,426 612,914 648.011 602.150 578,136

1q4 0o9

91.84c t5,9r0 94.126 80,818 
'42,t67 

33.300

(191.966) - 0
(670,184) (644,219) (497.J2rJ t427,76,] @01.522t (360.458)

$ 79,102

542,910

l6t_016

(2e6.87;)

, 104,710

515,310

64,41a
(45,407)

(261,651)

I59,0t6
81,r,745 3X9,746 486,456 167,800

Pl fiduciiry rd Doritior
Conlribulion - dployd

Bd.fit psyndl3, includirg r€tunds ol nploye omributions
Admirishlion qp.ne

Net chaB€ in pls fiduciary nel position

.l23.Jll 246,316 753.414 215.571 l30,l0l t62.412 179,490 254,240

562,612 2.954,150 (493,341) 261,663 3ls,2s3 77r,s36 17,608 562,?37

{670.384) (644,219\ (497,323) 1421,760) (40r.s22) (160,458) (296,an) (261,6i)
(1e,500) 03,367) (2r,62' re.6e',1t ___-lujgl ____l3glIl _____1.!JAI __U.L91r_I
191,299 2.5i7,340 (759,315) 29,1A4 594,42A 5s3.3rs (l t4,s64) 540.987

'roial p ion lbbiliit - begin"ing
'lobl pd,ion lilbilit, - ending

Plln fidncirry n.r posilion - b.ajnning

Plan fidu.irry nel posilio, - Gndins

Ncl posilion 6ld (lidihy) 6 r p6.ar!Ee of
@ve,€d-dplole payroll

166,616 |7,441 51t.578 169,913

9.teo,562 6,642,722 1,40\077 7,)72,253 6,n7,425 6,2tA,5tO 6,139.074 5,793,037

__2.lLg.__yws6"____jp2lL__i.!9L ___-9!lE___J-1j,]9_-__@pl_

I (592.914) t (623,578) I (1,047.97' i (l.7rr,gEl r (r,4r2.elr) ! (r.192.616) I (r,416,185) t (815,r6n

94 059'" 9164Vr 6a 55% 3035% Argzyo 85.04% at.41"/, 886!9'.

),241,855 1,19?,339 l,6tt,8l7 t.981,627 2,060.?t8 1,919.9?0 2.097,191 2,020,005

41676 44 61% -188.61% -8333% -6L5f/o -6212!/r -67.tt c -&757.

29t,060 300.395 261,531 249,23a l$,9t6 \62,412. t60,350 t92,511

-266,805 -322,694 -26r.581 -U9,23a -181,916 -162,4t2 -160,971 19r.976

_____2.4L ____p).JPL ---------------- _____!4I ___eL
l,?41,355 1,397,889 t,5t2,145 1,330,282 2,i21,261 2,060,?t8 1,9t9,920 2.091,797

2t 45Vr 23 ovr t1 3Ar/r t3 6yo 9.O7r/. 1 aA./. 3 33% 9 tavo

.. - 2022 infom.tion will be detemitred aft.r the filoal year end ard eill be includ€d
in the 2023 valu.tioa repon (exce.p from th€ July l, 2022 Aclu8ial Yaluation R.pon)

Hi,rMidl irlm.riN pri* ro ,h. irvl.MtdirD dc,$a 68 b not tqtitu l

N.l pdriotr ur.t (li.Dility) - .trdalg

nlan 
'lCu.i.!y 

der po3ilion as a permlaB€ olrotcl p*ion liabilny

{lorsdl-emplo}c p.yroll

Schdul. of City Con.riburion r

A.tuanaly d€rmined @.rriburions
Con6butioDs in rclri@ ro rhe rclwidly

del.min d @ nbudm
conLibution d.fi ci..c.y (*es)

City'3 co*red - €dploye payroll

Coirnburiooe $ a pqeit.g. of @veEd.employe p.,aoll
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WAS}IINCTON. GEORGIA
CONIBINING BALANCE SHEEI'

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

DECEMBIR31,2022

Specirl R.venue Crpitll P.oj.cb

ASSEI!
Crlh .trd Clsh Equivrleds

R€ccivrbt$ (rct)
lnlcrgove menl.l
Trr€s

LIABILITItrS
Accounts 3nd Cotrtr.cts Pryrbl.
DrG ro orher Fuds

Tottl Lirbilitie3

FUND BALANCE

Non.ped.ble:
Contncturlly R.quiEd to b€

Mrint ined lntlct

Assigmd

Totll Fund Brl.mes

Torrl Lirbir ies rnd Fnnd

Bshnc€

Crlhwry Cr[lPry
Urbrn Phntrtiotr Pl.nt tion TSPLOST

f,-911 Redevelopm€pt Oper.linq nun shhqs Di$r.rionry
2017

SPLOST
CDBG/CHIP

Gtlt
Perp.tu!l

Hhloric.l

Conlmission

CslhwrJ
Charitthl€

Trust

Pdnciprl

Totol

SPLOST

s 17,E67 ti 207,175 S 1,000 s t24,6I9 S 210,02J S

t+t32

_zztrut

s I 6,858 $ 3 s 3&629

I1,298

606371

69,917

s

2374 38,067 18,178

6r,699

- , lJxto _u6u! lllxt2f, - luh7 5Ll2?

--6.!!! 
__2AA 

-U"!{r

3&06;

. 38,067

9,990

8,1t8

18,178

9,990

40,137

,127

61,699

14,032

---lzut:t

tq980
66(873
61142

751,995

24 24

22t,707
6,834 2,314 17,K7

6,tJ4 t7,U7 221,207

s 6,Es8 3 
'!rq!1 !_!elg.

1,000 186318 210,023

186318 210,023

s 1,000 s l8(31r s,,_21q!23
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CITY OF WASHINGTON, Gf,ORGIA
CO IBINING S'IATEMENT OFREYENUES, EXPENDITURES ANDCHANGES IN FT:ND BAI-ANCES

NONMAJOR GOYERNMENTAL FIINDS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED DECEMBEBSI,2022

Crlhway C.llN.y
Urbrn Pl.larrio! PLnt t'ton

D911 R.d{.lopEc(l Oo.rotins Funi.hirss
TSPLOST ZOIT CDEG/CHIP

DisEtioDrB SPLOST SPLOST Gr.

C{Uaa.v
Hi..ori..l Chrrit bL Tot l

C.D.t ry Pmp.rtis Tiqit Nonmrior
P.rp.h,al ComDi$ioD EdNm.nt Coy.mmmtll

Trut Piincio.l Fond!

BEYENUES

EXPENDITURES

Public S.f.iy

Cuhurc rnd R.cE.tior
tlouing rnd t A.lopm.lt
'lbt l Errt.ndituB

EIc (D.ffci.ncy)ofR.v.nu6
Ov.r (Und.r) Erp.dituE

OTHER TTNANCING SOURCES (USESI

Totd Oah.r Ain.!.ing

N.r (h.ngc itr fuDd B31.....

rund Rrlfte! - B.sinninr ofYor

s

t37,452

J $

I,E35

s 14&947 s

142521

137

137

3

949,717

1,tE,947

E00,259
stt

137'?62
ta,52t

I,E35
4J5,452

717,2

s

149.007

s-
315,612

23

375,69s

$-
ll24,547

424,547

5 n

210 70

2r0 70

$

11

,T

3,4E9

137,452 l,at9
431,96J

431,963I,EJs tA,Sll

o,EJ$ 6,4E6 2t0(137.4!2) (J,4891 ll 375,695 (7376\

s !!4!!q $ ,4q9?l

70 tt7 232,157

Fund B.hD.6 - Eud of Y.r.

137452

i-

Otss)
t9JOz

! -!zr!1 ; 221,207

r,000

!-J4S.

- 558,tE0
(2at3t2\ (340,7E1)

695,6i|2
(592,0931

(3/t9)

lo32l

s 6,EJ4

1t

2p63

s ,;1!

4{S5

2l+121

c5r3r2) 211399

l2a,3El 210,02J

61,9J5

210

37,E57

$ 3E,06?

70

l&l0E

! !!JZE

- 
13,

19,990

r03539

135,996

415,999

!.-:g!31 $ i!!pg!

TO



CITY OF WASHINGTON, GEORGIA
NONMAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSMION
DECEMEER 31,2022

Business-TyDe Activities

?rssEfs
Current Assets:

Accounts Reccivable (Net ofAllowrnce for [hcollectiblH)
Pr€pdd Expenses

Total Current A$ets

Noncurr€nt Assets:
C.pit.l Acseb not Being Dcprecirted
C.pitrl Assets Net Of Accunulated Depreciation

Totrl Noncurrent Assets

Totnl ,{ssets

Solid
Wsste

lnternet
Telecommunicrtions

E5,l7l S

1,450

4,000
491,114

s

Totsl

s E5,17t
1,4s0

4,000
491,174

495,174

I

495,114

DEFERRED OTiTFLOWS OF Rf,SOI,IRCES

Ireferred Outllows ofResources - Pension

_i81J95

1,422 1.422

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:

Accounts Pxyable
Accrued Liabilities
Compenrated Absences
Accru€d lnterest Payrble
Notes Payrble - Current

Totrl Current Liabilities

Noncurrrnl I-isbilities

\et Pension Lirbility
liotes Pryable - Noncurrent

Totrl Noocurrent Lirbilities

'Iot,rl Liibilities

55,4t2
1,923
5,955

54,662

55,412
7923
s9ss

54,662

123,974 123,974

33Jt6
r2Jr8t

33,716

241262

157,004

2t0J7E

DEI'f,RRED INFI,OWS OF Rf,SOURCf,S
Deferred Inllows of Resourc$ - Pcnsion 93,446

NET POSITION
Net lnvestment in Crpitil Asscts
UnrNtrictad

Tot l Nct Position

311,224
(r0r,43r)

s 793 0

311224
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CTTY OF WASHINGTON, GEORGIA
NONMAJOR PROPRIETARY FTJNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF RI]VENT]ES, EXPENSES AND CIIANCES IN NET POSITION
DECEMBf,R 3I, 2022

Busin€ss-Type Activities

Solid
Wrsle

Internal
Talecommunic{tions Totrl

OPER{TING Rf,VENUES
Charges for Srlei rnd Scrvices

Other

Totrl Operating Revenues

OPORA'TING EXPENSES
Cost of Srles and Scrvicas
Pcrson{l Sert'ices

Deprecirtion

Totrl OperrtiDg ErpeNes

0pelrting lncomc(I-oss)

NONOPERATING RXI'ENUES (EXPENStrS)

hterest ReveEues

Interesf on Notes Pryrble

Gain on Slle oflnvestmcrl it Joint Venlure

Total NonopeBting Revenues (Expe ses)

Net Income (Loss) Befor€ Trrnsfaft

TrrDsfe8 in
Trxnsfer.s ollt

I otrl Tr.trsfe.s iD(out)

Chatrges in Net Position

\er Position - Beginning

Net Position - Ending

$ 557,665 S 3,698 $ s6r J63

I E5,952

267.817

8?,488

541.257

16.408

185,952

261$11
87,488

3.69t 20.106

(30{)

(10{)

635.0{9
(304)

615,049

IM

635,049 634,145

654,851

344,423

45,25s

344,423

0,398,794)(1,100,626)

(l,t00,626) fl.054.3?l)

62,159

146,134

(461,879) (399,52n',

l3

s ,{t8-793 $- s 193
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tiiuJrou 2021- t:

Effect:

Recommendatioos:

\riews of Resoonsible
()fficials and Planned

Crxrective Actrons:

City of Washington, (koryia
Schedule of Findiogs an.l Respooses

December 31, A)22

Because of a limited number of ar.ailable penonoel, it is ror always possible to adequately segregate certaifl
iacompatible duties, so tltat no r,nc .mployee has access to hoth ph,r'sical assets and the related accounting records,

o! to all phases of a kansactbn. Coosequenth the possil iw cxists that unintentional or intentional erors or
irregularities could cxist aod aot be promptly detected.

Fai-lure to properly segregate duties or implcmerit compensating controls carr lead to misappropriation of funds or
abuse ofthe s)"stem that is not detccted in a timely manner bv employees in the normal course ofpedormiq; their
assigned functiors

Because oflkojted resources and pcrsonnel, managernent rnay m)t be able to propedy ad&ess this finding, but
checks aod balances should lre strcngthened betweeo the ,\ccounting Depaitment, City lfanager , Mayor arul Ciq
Council to offset this de6ciencv.

W'e will contioue to review our operatioos to deteImiflc the most efficieflt and effective solution to propedy

segregate duties.

The Cities expenditures excer:dcd appropriatioris at the iegal leyel of cootrol.

We recornmend that the Citv pass a budget that accurareli reflects the rxpected cx?enditures and amend the budget

tfuoughout the year to accoufit idr uflforeseerr chaoges io these expendit[es.

We concur vrith the fmdiogs of our city auditor aod piao ofl passiog an accurate budget as s/ell as amend the budget

throughout the year to accouot for unfofieen chenges in rcvcnues aIId expenditues.

Fi. rno 2O22-2:

Recommcnda trons:

ric.ws of Resurnsible
()tlcials and Plaoned

er4eeore-\etiqq$

Finding 2022-3: During the coutse ofthe audit, it was noted that not all checkhg accounts were being reconciled on a timely basis.

Effect:

Recommendations:

Views of Resoonsible
( )fficials and Planned

Cotrective Actions:

This deficiency could resulted in cffors and omissions rrnd uoteliaLrle financial reports

It is recommended that aoy and all bank eccounts be reconciled on a timely basis.

We coocur with this recomrnerrdatron.
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.Morris & Waters.
REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON

COMPLIANCE AND OTIIER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT
OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE VITH

GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Indenendent Auditot's ReDort

To the Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council
Washington, Georgia

We have audited, in accordance u,itJr the auditing standatds generally accepted in the United States ofAmedca and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Gotemnenl Auditirg Standardr issued by the Comptroller General of the United States,
the frnancial statements of the govetnmental actir-ities, the business-trp+ activities and each majot fund of the City of
Washington, Georgia ('the City') as of and fot the year ended December 31, n22, and the telated notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comptise the City's basic financial statements, and have issued our repolt thereon dated Novembet
29,2023.

Intcmal Control over Financial Reporring

In planning and petforming our audit of the firiancial statemenrs, we considered the City's intemal control over financial
repotting to detetmine the audit procedures that a;e appropdate in the circun.rstances fot the pu4>ose of exptessing our opinions
on the financial statements, but not fot the purpose of o'pressing an opitri.-rri on the effectiveness ofthe City's internal control.
Accotdingly, we do not expfess an opinion on thc cffectiveness of the Cit,v's intefld control

lr dzfcierry ir i emalcootrol exists vzhen the design or operalion of a control does not allow management ot employees,
in the normal course of performhg thei.r'assigned furrctions, to prevent, or detect and coffect misstatements on a timely basis.

A nateriol t'eaknets is a deficiency, or a combination ofdeficiencies, in iltemal control such that there is a reasonable possibility
that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected afld cortected on a timely
basts. A ignSnrt defdenE is a de{iciency or a combination of deficiencies in intemal cortol that is less severe than a material
weakness, yet .important enough to merit attention by those charged vith goi'emance. \t0t consider the deficiencies desctibed
in the accompanying schedule of Erndings and respr;nses. as items 2022-1 - 2022-3, to be significant deficiencies.

Out considerat.ion of intemal control vas ior the limited purpose described in the fust paragflph of this section and
v/as riot designed to identifr all deficiencies in interoai control that might be matetial weak-nesses or significant deFrciencies and

therefore, material rveaknesses or significant deficieccies may exist that wcri-'trot identified. Given these limitations, during our
audit we did not identiE, anv defrciencies in interuvri contol that we consi<iet to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been i<lcntifi<,C.

Morris & Waters
Certifi ed Public Accountants
325 Tellico Rd.
C€nton, GA 301 1 5
Ph (770!88$3516 54
wtw.moris-watsra.@m



Comoliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whethet the City's Frnancial statements are free of material
misstatement, we petformed tests ofits compliance with certain provisions of laws, tegulations, contracts and grant agreements,
noncompliance vdth which could have a ditect and rnaterial effect on the determination of Ftrancial statemeflt amorurts.
Horvwer, providing an opinion on compliance with those ptovisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingln we do
not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instznces ofnoncompliance or othef matters that are required
to be repotted undet Coaenruert Auditing Stdrdordr.

Ciqv oflTashington's Response to Finditg

The City's responses to the findings identified in our audit ate described in the accompanying schedule of Fmdings and
responses. We did not audit the City's responses rnri accotdiogly, we express no opinion on them.

Putpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solel,v to describe rhe scope oforu restirrg of intemal conttol and compLiance and the (esult
of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the et'lectiveness of the entitr,'s intemal control or on compliance. This report
is an integtal part of an audit petformed in accordance tvith Cournnext -,laditirg Stardards in consideting the entiry's intemal
conftol and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for aoy other purpose.

N{otris & Waters

7l4r,N, anL@
Car.rton, Geo4;ia
Nor.cmber 29, 2023
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CITY OF WASHINGTON, GEORGIA
SCHEDULE OF PROJECTS USING SPECIAL PURPOSE SALES TAX PROCEEDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

Estimated Cost * Expenditures

Cost Original Current
Prior
Years

Current
Year

Total To
Date

2OI1 SPLOST $ 2,02!,efq t:2{2529s.

Water and Sewer Improvements s 2,229,669 s 2,229,669

20I7 SPLOST L-li-r_!lz!. $ I,Q!,fzq

Water and Sewer; Streets and Sidewalks;
Buildings; Fire Facilities and Equipment

Water and Sewer $ r,143,681 $ 25t312 s _!,121p13_

. Estimated cost represents the portion of these projects to be financed with Special Purpose Local Option Sales Tax.
Actual costs that are in excess of these amounts have been linanced through alternative funds.

s
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